
(over) 

BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

www.berkshireplanning.org  
 
SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

 
MEETING NOTICE 

A meeting of the Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
will be held on: 

 
Thursday, May 15, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Berkshire Regional Planning Commission Offices 

Pittsfield, Massachusetts 
 

Meeting Material:  All written materials for the meeting are posted on BRPC’s website:  
www.berkshireplanning.org.  Click on the calendar date for the meeting and materials available 
will be listed. 

 
Please Note:

 

  This will be a 3rd Thursday date in downtown Pittsfield.  Arrive early and enjoy the people 
and food; parking may be difficult to find. 

 
AGENDA 

I. Opening          (7:00-7:05) 
 
 A. Call to Order 
 B. Roll Call 
 C. Approval of Minutes of March 20, 2014 Meeting 
 
II. Comments from the Public       (7:05-7:10) 
 

Members of the public may offer comments regarding topics which are on the agenda or 
other matters which they wish to bring to the Commission’s attention.  Comments are limited 
to no more than three minutes and are to be directed to the Commission. 

 
III.  Delegates' Issues         (7:10-7:15) 
 

Delegates and Alternates may bring up any issue not on the agenda. 
 
IV. Consideration of Draft Transportation Improvement Program for FY 2015-2018 
            (7:15-7:40) 
 

Each year the Berkshire MPO adopts a four-year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
for the use of federal transportation funds across the region.  The Commission has a vote on 
the MPO regarding this item.  There several options regarding which new project to program in 
the 4th year.  The Commission has a vote on the MPO regarding the TIP, with the MPO 
scheduled to meet on May 20th to approve a draft TIP for public release and comment. 
 

http://www.berkshireplanning.org/�


 
 

 

V. Consideration of Draft Transportation Unified Planning Work Program for FY 2015 
            (7:40-7:50) 
 

Each year the Berkshire MPO establishes a transportation planning work program for the 
region.  The Commission has a vote on the MPO regarding this item. 
 

VI. Kinder-Morgan Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Projects   (7:50-8:20) 
 

Kinder-Morgan, a major pipeline and terminal company, is proposing two major projects which 
directly impact Berkshire County.  Due to scheduling conflicts, KM representatives will not be 
able to be present at this meeting but given the amount of activity which is occurring on two 
fronts in the county, it is appropriate to start a discussion at the Commission.  Staff can also 
bring the Commission up to date on how we have been approaching this complex and new 
planning issue. 
 

VII. Report of the Regional Issues Committee – Utilization of the Rural-Urban Transect and 
Form-Based Codes        (8:20-8:30) 
 
The Regional Issues Committee has been researching and discussing the potential for newer 
planning terms and concepts, the Rural-Urban Transect and Form-Based Codes, to be useful 
to Berkshire cities and towns.  There will be a short presentation and a recommendation from 
the Committee. 
 

VIII. Consideration of BRPC Budget for FY 2015     (8:30-8:40) 
 
IX. Report of the Nominating Committee – Slate of Officer Candidates for FY 2015 
            (8:40-8:45) 
 

The Nominating Committee will report on its recommended slate of BRPC Officers for FY 
2015.   The election will be on the agenda for the to-be scheduled summer meeting; at that 
time additional nominations will be taken from the floor. 

 
X. Approval of Executive Committee Actions between March 20 and May 15, 2014 
            (8:45-8:50) 
 
XI. Executive Director’s Report       (8:50-8:55) 
 

A. MassDOT Project Selection Advisory Council Public Hearing – Tuesday, May 20, 2014, 
BRPC 

B. Release of Proposed Remedy for Rest of River Clean-Up by EPA – Tuesday, June 17, 
2014, Lenox Middle/High School 

C. Status of 2015 District Local Technical Assistance & Community Innovation Challenge 
Grant Funding in Budget 

D. H.1859 – “An Act promoting the planning and development of sustainable communities” 
(formerly the Comprehensive Land Use Reform Act) 

E. 5th Thursday Dinner for Planning & Zoning Boards – Planning for the Impacts of Climate 
Change at the Local Level - May 29th, Cork & Hearth, Lee 

F. Other 
 
XII. Adjournment         (8:55)    
 
 

 
Other interested citizens and officials are invited to attend. 

 
 



 
 

 

City and Town Clerks: Please post this notice pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 39, Section 23B 
 



 BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

 TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

Massachusetts Relay Service:  TTY:  771 or 1-800-439-2370 

www.berkshireplanning.org    

SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS     
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair                   Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Thursday, March 20, 2014 
At the Berkshire Regional Planning Commission Office 

1 Fenn Street, Suite 201, Pittsfield, MA 01201 
 
I.       Call to Order 

 
A. The meeting is called to order at: 7:00 PM   

Chair Sheila Irvin reminded all per the open meeting law, BRPC records all meetings. Others may 
record the meeting after informing the chair.  Any documents presented must be left with the chair at 
the meeting.   
 

B. Introductions/Roll Call 
The following Commission members are present:    
   

Robert Ronzio – Becket Delegate 
Beth Van Ness – Becket Alternate 
Audrey Matys – Clarksburg Delegate 
Caleb Darby – Dalton Delegate 
Chuck Ogden – Egremont Alternate 
Tom Brule – Florida Delegate 
Chris Rembold – Great Barrington Alternate 
Richard Roussin – Hinsdale Alternate 
Jack Hickey – Lanesborough Alternate 
Tom Wickham – Lee Delegate 
Mark Smith – Lenox Delegate 
Wayne Burkhart – Monterey Alternate 
Bob Bott – Mount Washington Delegate 
James Lovejoy – Mount Washington Alternate 
James Mullen – New Marlborough Delegate 
Kyle Hanlon – North Adams Delegate 
Sheila Irvin – Pittsfield Delegate  
CJ Hoss – Pittsfield Alternate 
Rene Wood – Sheffield Alternate 
Kate Fletcher – Stockbridge Delegate 
Marie Raftery – Stockbridge Alternate 
Holly Ketron – Tyringham Delegate 
Sarah Hudson – Tyringham Alternate 
Pat Dunlavey – Williamstown Delegate 
Roger Bolton – Williamstown Alternate 
        

                    Staff Present: 
Nat Karns - Executive Director 
Tom Matuszko – Assistant Director 
Marianne Sniezek - Office Manager 
Amy Kacala – Senior Planner 
Lauren Gaherty – Senior Planner 
 
 
 



Others Present:     
Andy McKeever – iberkshire staff 
Paul Smernoft – Williamstown Resident 
John Pariseau – County Resident 

   
C. Approval of Minutes of Commission Committee Meeting of January 16, 2014 Meeting 

Jack Hickey moved to approve the minutes with spelling corrections; seconded by Rene Wood.  
Unanimously approved with six abstentions.  
 

II. Public Comments – John Pariseau, County resident and Pittsfield business owner, expressed his 
frustration ever the lack of vocational educational opportunities in Berkshire County. The losers are the local 
businesses and students. There are about 7,000 high school students in this county of which a couple 
thousand would benefit from this kind of training in high school.  There are less than a thousand students 
enrolled in vocational classes in Berkshire County. There are three high school schools that offer vocational 
classes in Pittsfield at Taconic, McCann Tech and a few classes are offered at Monument Mountain.  In 
other regions in the state there are Regional Technical High Schools that offer 15 to 20 different courses of 
study.  Why does Berkshire County have 12 school systems going their own way?  With the school 
enrollment numbers continuing to go down can we afford to continue doing this? When will we as a region 
start looking at ourselves not 12 separate high schools but as one region? We need to build two to three 
great regional schools that offer vocational shops and great academics.  Who takes the leadership role for 
this? 

 
 Nat Karns stated there are strategies and policies in the proposed Sustainable Berkshire Plan related to this 

topic. 
 
III. Delegate & Alternate Issues – none 
   
IV.  Briefing on District Local Technical Assistance Projects for 2015 
 
 Tom Matuszko presented the projects BRPCs staff will work on which fall under three categories: 

• Planning Ahead for Housing 
• Planning Ahead for Growth 
• Supporting Regional Efforts/Services 

 
There are six projects BRPC received requests for that were not funded under the DLTA funds this year. 
Most of those projects that did not make the cut have other funding opportunities. 
 
All were encouraged to write their State Representative to continue to support this important program and 
include DLTA money in the Budget Bill. 

 
 V.  Presentation of Great Barrington Master Plan  
  

Great Barrington Town Planner (and BRPC Alternate) Chris Rembold presented the new Master Plan for 
Great Barrington. 
 
Chris explained Great Barrington used DLTA funding and BRPCs staff expertise for 2 years to assist in their 
master plan. The project took 3 years to complete.   
 
Important points when doing a master plan are: 

• A Master Plan is not a law. It is a Policy 
• State, Regional and Master Plan should all be in alignment 
• Having the right people on the committee and a diverse group – the “right” representation of key 

boards and the public.   
• Public Participation was very important – People on committee where champions of the effort which 

ensured public participation. One idea was go to the dump to get input. 
• Great Barrington had to balance between land that can be taxed and preserving land. 1/3 of land in 

Great Barrington is taxable. Land that cannot be taxed is 2/3 of Great Barrington’s land. 
• Per MGL the Planning Board must approve. They chose to also have the Select Board approve the 

plan but that is not legally required.  Great Barrington did not get approval at a Town meeting. 
• Key Issues- Aging Infrastructure, Changing Demographics, Economic Transition (Population is 

decreasing) and Climate Change 
 

  



Great Barrington created a Vision. In order to achieve their vision they created Four Core Initiatives: 
Character 
•  Protect special places and features, infill development, rehabilitation, support rural areas 
Community and Connections 
• Vibrant and affordable neighborhoods connected to each other and to services, and sustainable 

over the long term 
Commerce 
•  Promote development scaled to our town’s size, that diversifies the tax base, and supports village 

centers 
Coordinate and Collaborate 
• Utilize the plan to guide policy, collaborate with volunteers, nonprofits, and stewards, plan regionally 

 
VI. Sustainable Berkshires – Consideration of Plan Adoption 
 
 Nat gave an overview of Berkshire County facts and the process: 

• The old plan was adopted in 2001. At that time we thought our decline in population was turning 
around. 

• The aspects of the new plan show our population is continuing on a declining trend until 2030 then 
will accelerate after 2030 as the baby boom group will age out of the population. 

•  How sustainable is Berkshire County? Communities are not fiscally sustainable.  
• The ideal school enrollment for a high school is 1200 to 1800. Currently our schools do not have 

the enrollment to support vocational programs or a broad range of electives. 
• Berkshire County wages are below the National Average. 
• Berkshire County Education Attainment is below the National Average; higher rates of graduates 

from high school than national average but lower college and post college graduates than the 
National Average. 

• While working on the Sustainable Plan there were a lot of Public Outreach, Steering Committees, 
Public Workshops, organizations and business involved.  

• The Sustainable Berkshires Regional Plan is a policy document and does not regulatory teeth to it. 
• In the land use element, we need to preserve the existing land use pattern.   We need reinvestment 

in our village centers and our downtowns. 
• Rural land that has been developed in its low density pattern and it has a natural resource value. 

We are not advocating that all those lands be protected and preserved. 
• It is important to preserve the natural attributes that make a neighborhood or the region attractive.  

An example is neighborhoods around a lake how important it is to preserve the lake and the water 
in order for those neighborhoods to be attractive.. 

• There are many strategies and policies in the plan. There are still others that may not be in the 
plan. 

• BRPC has received feedback on sections and asked for clarification on some points. 
 

Rene Wood asked Nat what he thought was the best plan of action for tonight.  Nat asked the commission 
to adopt Sustainable Berkshires, to be modified by staff to incorporate the substantive changes agreed to 
by the Commission and also to incorporate purely editing and non-substantive changes in the final 
document. 
 
Nat explained the suggested new strategies to be added or modified language from the BRPC Staff in the 
“Responses to Comments Received as of March 14, 2014” document.  
 

 Nat explained at the Public Hearing there was a concern raised over the Housatonic Railroad extension.  
Everyone can decide to keep the language that mentions the Housatonic Railroad extension in the plan as 
is, modify it, or drop it. If the commission does drop the comment the commission should, due to the level of 
input the commission has received over the last 6 or 7 years through economic development and tourism 
interests in the county over this topic, extend the public comment period to get further input on the idea of 
dropping mention of passenger rail.  
 
Nat explained additional input on the Housing & Neighborhoods and Infrastructure and Services sections in 
the potential additional policies or goals to consider March 20, 2014 document handed out tonight. 
 
Sheila asked if anyone wanted to discuss any aspects of the plan. 
 
 
 



 
 
Kate Fletcher expressed her concerns on Bullet 6 Public Hearing Questions and Answers (March 6, 2014) 
document that was in the packet regarding the concern about the Housatonic Railroad extension.  
 

Staff response:  The plan, in the Infrastructure and Services element, does mention and endorse 
passenger rail service on the Housatonic rail line, as well as improvement east-west on the CSX line 
between Boston and Albany, via Pittsfield, as does the existing Regional Transportation Plan, upon 
which the transportation recommendations were built.  The Berkshire Comprehensive Economic 
Development Strategy also endorses this.   

 
Kate was unsure why we have this language in the plan and what it enables. Kate also asked about the 
statement “Overcome the region’s lack of access to Interstate highway system by planning an expedited 
access route from I-90 etc..” (see below) 
 

 Nat replied to the first question. Stockbridge’s concern is over the Housatonic Railroad discussion at this 
point.  In the plan it only references the Housatonic rail in this statement: 

 
Specifically, on Page IS-42, “Transportation Goals and Objectives” states: 

“. . . re-establishing passenger rail service on the Housatonic rail corridor and enhancing 
existing east-west Amtrak service . . .” 
 

Nat replied to the second question and explained this is the strategy in the plan Kate is referring to: 
 

Further, on Page IS-56, a strategy is:   
Strategy A: Serve critical regional economic development needs.  
Overcome the region’s lack of access to the Interstate highway system by planning an 
expedited access route from I-90 to Pittsfield and further north. Examine opportunities for 
intermodal freight transfers. Expand freight and passenger rail service and associated 
infrastructure requirements. Alleviate congestion on major freight routes. 
 

 Nat replied that BRPC was in no way endorsing a specific proposal regarding the railroad or the ridership 
projected numbers or that the economic impact analysis that was done is totally accurate. The statement is 
only a broad conceptual statement that it would be desirable to have in Berkshire County direct access to 
the NY Metro market using passenger rail or any other area via passenger rail.   

  
 Kate would like to see a line stating access from Boston to Pittsfield or Pittsfield to the Albany area.  Nat 

replied those line serve a different purpose or different market and the plan does not exclude other lines. 
 
 Sheila explained the mention of the Housatonic Rail is not an endorsement but an acknowledgement of a 

proposal that is happening now. 
   
 Rene Wood suggested inserting the word “evaluate” in the language. 
 
 Nat explained the language in the plan is not new; it is language that was adopted by the MPO. 
 

Jamie Mullen moved to keep the language as written in the statement; seconded by Robert Ronzio.  Fourteen 
approve, Five opposed.  Approved. 
 
Nat explained Strategy A is a recommended strategy in the plan is from the existing adopted transportation 
plan.  
 
Rene Wood moved to allow staff to update the plan with substantive changes as outlined tonight; seconded 
by Kyle Hanlon.  Unanimously approved.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Rene Wood moved to adopt the Sustainable Berkshires Plan with substantive changes approved tonight and 
also to incorporate purely editing and non-substantive changes in the final document; Seventeen approved, 
two abstentions.  Adopted. 
 

Robert Ronzio, Becket Delegate - yes 
Audrey Matys, Clarksburg Delegate - yes 
Caleb Darby, Dalton Delegate - yes 
Chuck Ogden, Egremont Alternate - yes 
Tom Brule, Florida Delegate - abstained 
Chris Rembold, Great Barrington Alternate - yes 
Richard Roussin, Hinsdale Alternate - yes 
Jack Hickey, Lanesborough Alternate - yes 
Tom Wickham, Lee Delegate - yes 
Mark Smith, Lenox Delegate - yes 
Wayne Burkhart, Monterey Alternate - yes 
Bob Bott, Mount Washington Delegate - yes 
James Mullen, New Marlborough Delegate - yes 
Kyle Hanlon, North Adams Delegate - yes 
Sheila Irvin, Pittsfield Delegate - yes 
Rene Wood, Sheffield Alternate - yes 
Kate Fletcher, Stockbridge Delegate - abstained 
Sarah Hudson, Tyringham Alternate - yes 
Pat Dunlavey, Williamstown Delegate - yes 

 
VII. Approval of Executive Committee Actions at the March 6, 2014 Meeting 
 

Rene Wood moved to approve; seconded by Chris Rembold.  Unanimously approved with one abstention.  
 

VIII.  Executive Director’s Report   
A. Departure of Senior Planner Amy Kacala – Nat wished Amy well. 
B. Conservation Commission Training, March 29th & April 5th

C. “Think Regionally, Act Locally: Addressing Housing Needs in Western Mass. Communities” 
Workshop, Friday, April 25

, 9 a.m. – 3 p.m., BRPC, Pittsfield 

th

D. Tennessee Gas Pipeline Northeast Expansion Project – Nat explained BRPC submitted a grant 
application to bring in a knowledgeable legal expert. 

, 9 a.m.- 3:30 p.m., Holyoke Community College  

E. Termination of Various Federally Funded Wellness and Public Health Related Projects due to 
Federal Budget Cuts 

F. Other - none 
     
XI. Adjournment 

Rene Wood made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Kyle Hanlon.   Unanimously approved.   
Adjourned at 9:10 pm. 
 

Meeting Agenda 
Materials distributed or presented during this meeting: 

Draft Meeting Minutes  
Approval of Executive Committee Actions Memo 
Executive Director’s Report  
DLTA Projects for 2014 
Gt. Barrington Master Plan Presentation 
Memo Sustainable Berkshires Consideration of Plan Adoption 
Emails re: Sustainable Berkshires 
Public Hearing Questions and Answers 
BRPC Staff Responses to Comments Received as of March 14th

Letter re: Process of Approving Medical Marijuana Facilities 
 and 20th 

Flyer – Berkshire County Conservation Commissioners Training 
Flyer – Mass Housing Workshop 
Summary of comments Stockbridge on station siting meeting 
Letter Re: encourage adoption of the Sustainable Plan 
 



 
 

 

BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

www.berkshireplanning.org 
 
SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Delegates and Alternates, Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Nathaniel W. Karns, AICP, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  May 8, 2014 
 
SUBJ:  Consideration of Proposed Transportation Improvement Program for FY 2015-2018 
 
 
 
The Commission should consider the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for the next four years at its May 
15th meeting and instruct its Chair how to vote on this important document at the upcoming Berkshire Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO) meeting.  The MPO meeting will be held on May 20th at our office.  As the lead 
planning agency for the MPO, the Commission is responsible for developing this document. 
 
The TIP formally determines which transportation projects will receive federal funding for implementation over the 
next four years.  As such, it is an instrument for identifying and constructing regional priorities in the near-term and 
is one of the requirements of the federally mandated continuing, coordinated and comprehensive (3C) metropolitan 
planning process.   
 
This year’s TIP reflects a continued very challenged funding environment. The funding levels for each year have 
remained relatively steady over the past several years, with the exception of the spurt of projects funded under the 
American Recovery and Revitalization Act.  However, the fact that we have over $88 million in unfunded highway 
projects which have been requested shows how deep the transportation funding hole continues to be. The State 
thus far has not provided any indication of how the additional revenues generated by the legislative action last year 
to increase transportation funding will factor into the MPO funding decision process.  At current funding levels, we 
have 14 years worth of projects, not allowing for inflation, the normal reconstruction/ rehabilitation projects that 
inevitably get added to the list each year, or the fact that many local officials have quit submitting projects as they 
see no hope of them receiving funding in a timeframe that they can work within.  A list of all submitted projects and 
each project’s score, based on approved evaluation criteria, is attached.  Funding targets and the effect of annual 
inflation figures on each project’s cost estimates are also included. 
 
The TIP covers highways, congestion mitigation-air quality (CMAQ), highway safety improvement (HSIP), bridges, 
transportation alternatives program (TAP – formerly Transportation enhancements and some other small 
programs), and transit projects.  Bridges and transit are typically not contentious.  TAP decisions are now made by 
the State with no MPO involvement other than needing to program the funds when requested.  Development of this 
year’s highway improvement list has been easier than for the past several years as the priorities for the first three 
years basically were set in last year’s TIP and subsequent actions. 
 

 
FY 2015 (October 1, 2014 – September 30, 2015) 

Remaining funds for the Lee Tyringham Road project are already a commitment.  The Pittsfield project involves 
improving the intersection of West Housatonic Street and Center Street, utilizing Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality 
(CMAQ) funds and Highway Safety Improvement Funds (HSIP) for which there really is no other potential ready-to-
go use.  The remaining funds will allow the Dalton Housatonic Street project to go to bid; it is at 100% design and 
ready to go. 
 



 
 

 

 
FY 2016 (October 1, 2015 – September 30, 2016) 

The Dalton Housatonic Street project utilizes all of the regular highway funds and a portion of the CMAQ funds.  
Intersection improvements at Rte. 7/20 and Walker Street in Lenox utilize the remaining CMAQ funds plus the HSIP 
funds. 
 

 
FY 2017 (October 1, 2016 – September 30, 2017) 

The remaining needed funds to complete the Dalton Housatonic Street project are programmed.  Several years ago 
the MPO determined to give priority to the extension of the Ashuwillticook Rail Trail from Lime Street in Adams to 
Hodges Cross Road in North Adams as the next bike path extension.  The remaining earmark funds for that 
purpose and CMAQ funds are allocated.  The complex set of improvements around the Berkshire Medical Center 
Complex in Pittsfield is programmed to begin in FY 2017 and will utilize all the HSIP funds available in that year. 
 

 
FY 2018 (October 1, 2017 – September 30, 2018) 

The Berkshire Medical Center project is completed in FY 2018 and utilizes all CMAQ and HSIP funds.  $3,796,804 
remains available for additional projects to be programmed.  There are three options available.  A table showing 
those scenarios is attached, along with a one page description of each project that might be included. 
 

• Scenario 1A:  Reconstruction of Rte. 183/Walker Street in Lenox from Rte. 7/20 to Crystal Street in Lenox 
Dale; an additional $2.4 million will be needed in FY 2019.  This project has the highest evaluation rating of 
“4”.  It is at 75% design and easily can be ready for construction by FFY 2018. 

• Scenario 1B (two projects):  Reconstruction of Rte. 43/Water Street in Williamstown between Heating Plant 
Drive and 800 feet south of Meachum Street;  Rte. 2/Phelps Avenue intersection improvements in North 
Adams; $741,673 remains available  for programming.  Both of these projects have evaluation ratings of 
“3”.  The Water Street project is at 25% design; Rte. 2/Phelps Avenue has not begun design.  With this 
much lead time, both should be ready for construction by FFY 2018. 

• Scenario 1C: Reconstruction of Washington Mountain Road in Washington between Becket and Dalton 
town lines; an additional $6.2 million would be needed to complete which is all of FY 2019 funding and 2/3 
of what might be expected in FY 2020.  This project has an evaluation rating of “3”.  This project has been 
designed by MassDOT and is at 100% design.  At some point, there was an understanding that the new 
state transportation funds would pay for this project but that seems to have been taken off the table. 

 

 
Commission Action 

The Commission should determine which of these three scenarios the Chair should support at the MPO meeting 
which is scheduled for May 20th

 
. 

 
Attachments (6): 
 2015-2018 Berkshire TIP Development 
 Results of MPO Staff Evaluation of Highway Projects 
 FFY 2015-2018 – TIP Funding by Federal Fiscal Year & Projects Eligible for FFY 2018 
 FFY 2015-2018 – TIP Development 
 FFY 2018 Scenarios 
 Project Description Sheets – 4 projects 
  



Road Condition Mobility Reg. 
Connectivity

Goods 
Movement Safety Environment Livability

Project ID Project Town/City

Project will 
construct new 
road, or will 
strengthen 
pavement structure 
(not surface only) 
of existing road or 
will improve sub-
standard or poorly 
functioning 
drainage.

Project will 
reduce vehicle 
delay at 
intersections 
(LOS C or worse) 
and/or improve 
through lane(s) 
capacity along a 
corridor.

Improves 
Principal Arterial, 
or minor 
arterial/collector 
with no alternate 
route.

Project will make 
geometric 
improvements at 
intersections or 
along a corridor to 
facilitate truck 
movement (3 axle 
ADT greater than 
50).

Improves 
safety at 
location 
where 
accident 
rate 
exceeds 
the State 
average.

Project has 
positive (not 
neutral) effect on 
water quality 
and/or air quality, 
wildlife, or other 
natural features.

Meets at least  
two of these 
standards: 
Supports 
economic 
development, 
increase use of 
alternate modes, 
or benefits 3 or 
more defined EJ 
populations.

Total 
Project 
Score

Project Cost

Project 
Design 
Status 

(MassDOT)

CMAQ 
Eligible

HSIP 
Eligible

Most 
Recent 
PASAR 
Rating

606233 BMC AREA IMPROVEMENTS PITTSFIELD 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 $5,840,000 <25%   NA

607900 ROUTE 20/WEST HOUSATONIC ST 
& CENTER ST PITTSFIELD 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 $1,470,000 <25%   NA

604003 EAST STREET (LYMAN ST TO 
MERRILL RD) PITTSFIELD 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 5 $6,571,000 <25% 6

604553 ROUTE 8 & FRIEND STREET ADAMS 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 5 $1,850,000 25%   NA

603636 ROUTE 8 PASSING LANE CHESHIRE & 
LANESBOROUGH 0 1 1 1 1 0 0 4 $8,876,000 <25% 7

602280 HOUSATONIC STREET DALTON 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 4 $9,681,141 100%  5

606462 ROUTE 183/ WALKER ST LENOX 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 4 $5,534,932 25%  4

603491 FRIEND ST (RTE 8 TO MAPLE ST/ 
WEST RD) ADAMS 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 3 $2,044,442 <25% 5

603491A WEST RD ADAMS 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 3 $3,016,000 <25% 5

607328 ROUTE 8 ADAMS 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 3 $4,100,000 <25% 6

601431 WASHINGTON MOUNTAIN ROAD WASHINGTON 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 3 $9,065,000 100% 3

605799 ROUTE 43, WATER STREET WILLIAMSTOWN 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 3 $2,216,000 25%  4

607429 ROUTE 2 & PHELPS AVENUE NORTH ADAMS 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 3 $500,000 <25%  NA

607745 ROUTE 7/20 &WALKER ST LENOX 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 3 $534,581 <25%   NA

605389 ROUTE 116, MAIN STREET SAVOY 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2 $3,800,000 100% 4

604994 ROUTE 20 HANCOCK 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 $4,258,000 <25% 6

605798 ROUTE 23 MONTEREY 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 $4,300,000 100% 5

606406 SKYLINE TRAIL (MIDDLEFIELD RD) HINSDALE 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 $10,000,000 <25% 4

606162 ROUTE 43/ HANCOCK RD WILLIAMSTOWN 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 $1,500,000 <25% 5

601319 STOCKBRIDGE ROAD LEE 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 $3,000,000 <25% 5

2015-2018 Berkshire TIP Development
Results of MPO Staff Evaluation of Highway Projects, March 10th, 2014, sorted by Total Project Score



Berkshire MPO 2015 2016 2017 2018

Total (STP, 
CMAQ & HSIP) 
Annual Target

$5,651,880 $6,214,248 $6,214,248 $6,214,248

STP $3,921,497 $4,745,895 $4,745,895 $4,745,895

CMAQ $1,334,867 $1,112,389 $1,112,389 $1,112,389

HSIP $395,516 $355,964 $355,964 $355,964

Project ID Project Town/City PROJECT COST 
FFY 15

PROJECT 
COST FFY 16

PROJECT 
COST FFY 17

PROJECT COST 
FFY 18

Total 
Project 
Score

Project 
Design 
Status 

(MassDOT)

CMAQ 
Eligible

HSIP 
Eligible

606233 BMC AREA 
IMPROVEMENTS PITTSFIELD $5,840,000 $6,073,600 $6,316,544 $6,569,206 6 <25%  

607900
ROUTE 20/WEST 
HOUSATONIC ST & 
CENTER ST

PITTSFIELD $1,470,000 $1,528,800 $1,589,952 $1,653,550 6 <25%  

604003 EAST STREET (LYMAN 
ST TO MERRILL RD) PITTSFIELD $6,571,000 $6,833,840 $7,107,194 $7,391,481 5 <25%

604553 ROUTE 8 & FRIEND 
STREET ADAMS $1,850,000 $1,924,000 $2,000,960 $2,080,998 5 25%  

603636 ROUTE 8 PASSING 
LANE

CHESHIRE & 
LANESBOROUGH $8,876,000 $9,231,040 $9,600,282 $9,984,293 4 <25%

602280 HOUSATONIC STREET DALTON $9,681,141 $10,068,387 $10,471,122 $10,889,967 4 100% 

606462 ROUTE 183/ WALKER 
ST LENOX $5,534,932 $5,756,329 $5,986,582 $6,226,046 4 25% 

603491 FRIEND ST (RTE 8 TO 
MAPLE ST/ WEST RD) ADAMS $2,044,442 $2,126,220 $2,211,268 $2,299,719 3 <25%

603491A WEST RD ADAMS $3,016,000 $3,136,640 $3,262,106 $3,392,590 3 <25%

607328 ROUTE 8 ADAMS $4,100,000 $4,264,000 $4,434,560 $4,611,942 3 <25%

601431 WASHINGTON 
MOUNTAIN ROAD WASHINGTON $9,065,000 $9,427,600 $9,804,704 $10,196,892 3 100%

605799 ROUTE 43, WATER 
STREET WILLIAMSTOWN $2,216,000 $2,304,640 $2,396,826 $2,492,699 3 25% 

607429 ROUTE 2 & PHELPS 
AVENUE NORTH ADAMS $500,000 $520,000 $540,800 $562,432 3 <25% 

607745 ROUTE 7/20 & WALKER 
ST LENOX $534,581 $555,964 $578,203 $601,331 3 <25%  

605389 ROUTE 116, MAIN 
STREET SAVOY $3,800,000 $3,952,000 $4,110,080 $4,274,483 2 100%

604994 ROUTE 20 HANCOCK $4,258,000 $4,428,320 $4,605,453 $4,789,671 2 <25%

605798 ROUTE 23 MONTEREY $4,300,000 $4,472,000 $4,650,880 $4,836,915 2 100%

606406 SKYLINE TRAIL 
(MIDDLEFIELD RD) HINSDALE $10,000,000 $10,400,000 $10,816,000 $11,248,640 2 <25%

606162 ROUTE 43/ HANCOCK 
RD WILLIAMSTOWN $1,500,000 $1,560,000 $1,622,400 $1,687,296 1 <25%

601319 STOCKBRIDGE ROAD LEE $3,000,000 $3,120,000 $3,244,800 $3,374,592 1 <25%

 FFY 2015 -2018 - Berkshire MPO TIP Development

TIP Funding by Federal Fiscal Year

Future Costs at 4% inflation per year



Berkshire MPO 2015 2016 2017 2018

Total (STP, 
CMAQ & HSIP) 
Annual Target

$5,651,880 $6,214,248 $6,214,248 $6,214,248

STP $3,921,497 $4,745,895 $4,745,895 $4,745,895

CMAQ $1,334,867 $1,112,389 $1,112,389 $1,112,389

HSIP $395,516 $355,964 $355,964 $355,964

Projects Eligible for FFY 2018

Project ID Project Town/City PROJECT COST 
FFY 15

PROJECT 
COST FFY 16

PROJECT 
COST FFY 17

PROJECT 
COST FFY 18

Total 
Project 
Score

Project 
Design 
Status 

(MassDOT)

CMAQ 
Eligible

HSIP 
Eligible

 FFY 2018                   
STP Balance            

Remaning to 
Program

604003 EAST STREET (LYMAN 
ST TO MERRILL RD) PITTSFIELD $6,571,000 $6,833,840 $7,107,194 $7,391,481 5 <25% $3,796,804 $3,594,677

603636 ROUTE 8 PASSING 
LANE

CHESHIRE & 
LANESBOROUGH $8,876,000 $9,231,040 $9,600,282 $9,984,293 4 <25% $3,796,804 $6,187,489

606462 ROUTE 183/ WALKER 
ST LENOX $5,534,932 $5,756,329 $5,986,582 $6,226,046 4 25%  $3,796,804 $2,429,242

601431 WASHINGTON 
MOUNTAIN ROAD WASHINGTON $9,065,000 $9,427,600 $9,804,704 $10,196,892 3 100% $3,796,804 $6,400,088

605799 ROUTE 43, WATER 
STREET WILLIAMSTOWN $2,216,000 $2,304,640 $2,396,826 $2,492,699 3 25%  $3,796,804 -$1,304,105

607429 ROUTE 2 & PHELPS 
AVENUE NORTH ADAMS $500,000 $520,000 $540,800 $562,432 3 <25%  $3,796,804 -$3,234,372

606406 SKYLINE TRAIL 
(MIDDLEFIELD RD) HINSDALE $10,000,000 $10,400,000 $10,816,000 $11,248,640 2 <25% $3,796,804 $7,451,836

606162 ROUTE 43/ HANCOCK 
RD WILLIAMSTOWN $1,500,000 $1,560,000 $1,622,400 $1,687,296 1 <25% $3,796,804 -$2,109,508

601319 STOCKBRIDGE ROAD LEE $3,000,000 $3,120,000 $3,244,800 $3,374,592 1 <25% $3,796,804 -$422,212

Note: Projects with total project score of 2 and less or projects resulting in a remaining balance of  $ 4 million value were dropped from further consideration of programming in FFY 2018

 FFY 2015 -2018 - Berkshire MPO TIP Development

TIP Funding by Federal Fiscal Year

Future Costs at 4% inflation per year



FFY 2015 STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL
TARGET 3,921,497 1,334,867 395,516 5,651,880

FFY 2015
ID Project Description STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL Additional Information

601320 Lee, Tyringham Rd 1,139,304 1,139,304 AC 3 of 3; Total Project Cost = 5,900,000

607900
Pittsfield, West Housatonic 
St & Center St intersection 
improvements

1,074,484 395,516 1,470,000 CMAQ + HSIP; Total Project Cost = 1,470,000

602280 Dalton, Housatonic St 2,782,193 260,383 3,042,576 AC 1 of 3; STP + CMAQ; Total Project Cost = 
9,681,141

Total 3,921,497 1,334,867 395,516 5,651,880

FFY 2016 STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL
TARGET 4,745,895 1,112,389 355,964 6,214,248

FFY 2016
ID Project Description STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL Additional Information

602280 Dalton, Housatonic St 4,745,895 912,389 5,658,284 AC 2 of 3; STP + CMAQ; Total Project Cost = 
9,681,141

607745 Lenox, Route 7/20 & Walker 
St intersection improvements 200,000 355,964 555,964 CMAQ + HSIP; Total Project Cost = 555,964

Total 4,745,895 1,112,389 355,964 6,214,248

FFY 2017 STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL
TARGET 4,745,895 1,112,389 355,964 6,214,248

FFY 2017
ID Project Description STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL Additional Information

602280 Dalton, Housatonic St 980,281 980,281 AC 3 of 3; STP + CMAQ; Total Project Cost = 
9,681,141

606890

Adams/N. Adams 
Ashwillticook Rail Trail 
Extension (Lime St to 
Hodges Cross Rd)

1,334,867 1,334,867 CMAQ + HPP; Total Project Cost = 3,333,073; 
HPP = 1,998,206

606233 Pittsfield, BMC 3,543,136 355,964 3,899,100 AC 1 of 2; STP + CMAQ + HSIP; Total Project 
Cost = 6,316,544

Total 4,523,417 1,334,867 355,964 6,214,248

FFY 2018 STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL
TARGET 4,745,895 1,112,389 355,964 6,214,248

FFY 2018
ID Project Description STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL Additional Information

606233 Pittsfield, BMC 949,091 1,112,389 355,964 2,417,444
AC 2 of 2; STP + CMAQ + HSIP; Total Project 
Cost = 6,316,544

Total 949,091 1,112,389 355,964 2,417,444
Remaining 3,796,804 0 0 3,796,804

Berkshire MPO FFY 2015-2018 TIP Development



FFY 2018 STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL
TARGET 4,745,895 1,112,389 355,964 6,214,248

FFY 2018: Scenario 1A
ID Project Description STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL Additional Information

606233 Pittsfield, BMC 949,091 1,112,389 355,964 2,417,444 AC 2 of 2; STP + CMAQ + HSIP; Total Project 
Cost = 6,316,544

606462 Lenox, Route 183/ Walker St 3,796,804 3,796,804 Total Project Cost = 6,226,046; Remaning to 
Program = 2,429,242

Total 4,745,895 1,112,389 355,964 6,214,248

Remaining 0 0 0 0

FFY 2018: Scenario 1B
ID Project Description STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL Additional Information

606233 Pittsfield, BMC 949,091 1,112,389 355,964 2,417,444 AC 2 of 2; STP + CMAQ + HSIP; Total Project 
Cost = 6,316,544

605799 Williamstown, Route 43/ 
Water St 2,492,699 2,492,699 Total Project Cost = 2,492,699

607429
North Adams, Rte 2 & 
Phelps Ave; intersection 
improvements

562,432 562,432 Total Project Cost = 562,432

Total 4,004,222 1,112,389 355,964 5,472,575

Remaining 741,673 0 0 741,673

FFY 2018: Scenario 1C
ID Project Description STP CMAQ HSIP TOTAL Additional Information

606233 Pittsfield, BMC 949,091 1,112,389 355,964 2,417,444 AC 2 of 2; STP + CMAQ + HSIP; Total Project 
Cost = 6,316,544

601431 Washington, Washington 
Mountain Rd 3,796,804 3,796,804 AC 1 of 3; Total Project Cost = 10,196,892; 

Remaning to Program = 6,400,088

Total 4,745,895 1,112,389 355,964 6,214,248

Remaining 0 0 0 0

Berkshire MPO FFY 2015-2018 TIP Development
FFY 2018 Scenarios



MassDOT-BRPC-OTP April 2014 Update 

 
 

Project Description Sheet 
 

Project ID 606462 Cost $ 5,534,932 

Town/City Lenox FFY 2018 Cost $ 6,226,046  

Name Route 183 – Walker St AADT 3,200 (7.3% trucks) 

Start/End Route 7/20 to Crystal St Design Status (MassDOT) 25% (recv’d June 2012) 

Length 1.55 miles Project Score 4 

 
Description: Proposed project will reconstruct and widen 1.55 miles of municipally owned 
roadway, including sidewalk reconstruction.  Existing roadway width varies from 24-28 feet; 
proposed width is 30 feet (11 foot lanes with 4 foot shoulders).  A project-length ADA compliant 
sidewalk will be achieved by reconstructing existing sidewalks and constructing new sidewalk 
sections where cone currently exist. Drainage repairs/upgrades will target improving sub-grade 
and surface water runoff. 

Proposed Geometric Design Improvements:  Roadway/shoulder widening to accommodate 
non-motorized users. 
 
Proposed Traffic Control Improvements:  None proposed. 
 
ROW:  Project requires 43 temporary easements and 22 permanent easements. 
 
Residential Traffic:  No anticipated effect. 
 
Proposed Improvements to Alternate Modes:  Improvements include better accommodation 
for bicyclists in the roadway/shoulder, and providing a continuous ADA compliant sidewalk and 
upgraded wheel-chair ramps for pedestrians in residential areas. 
 
Environmental Justice:  Not an EJ area. 
 
Economic Development:  Infrastructure improvements to Walker Street support a primary 
connection between the Lenox Bypass and the business/mill section of Lenox Dale. 
 
Environmental Factors:  No anticipated effects. 
 
Additional Information:  The Town held a pre-design Public Input Meeting on 1/19/11 to solicit 
input and identify neighborhood/abutter concerns early in the design process.  Utility 
coordination meeting held March 2013.  Design Public Hearing was held 10/24/2013. 
 
 
 

 
 



MassDOT-BRPC-OTP April 2014 Update 

 
 

Project Description Sheet 
 

Project ID 605799 Cost $ 2,216,000 

Town/City Williamstown FFY 2018 Cost $ 2,492,699 

Name Water Street (Route 43) AADT 5700 (2% trucks) 

Start/End Heating Plant Drive to 800 ft south of 
Meachum Street 

Design Status (MassDOT) 25% 

Length 0.46 miles Project Score 3 

 
Description:  The proposed project will reconstruct and widen Water Street; adding 4 ft 
shoulders on each side, and a new parking lane (8 ft) on the west side of the roadway.  Existing 
deteriorated sidewalks and curbs will be replaced with 5 ft wide cement concrete sidewalks 
(ADA compliant) and granite curbing on both sides of the roadway.  Streetscape elements 
including new lighting and a bus shelter are also proposed. 

Proposed Geometric Design Improvements:  Wider cross section proposed (11 ft lanes with 
4 ft shoulders) and 8 ft parking lane. 

Proposed Traffic Control Improvements:  None. 

ROW:  Need ROW plans to determine impacts. 
 
Residential Traffic:  No anticipated effect. 
 
Proposed Improvements to Alternate Modes:  Improved riding surface and shoulder 
accommodation for bicyclists.  Improved sidewalks and wheelchair ramps for pedestrians. 
 
Environmental Justice:  Project not within/adjacent to EJ population. 
 
Economic Development:  Project is designed to enhance the business section of Water Street, 
provide much needed on-street parking and connectivity to the main business district on 
adjacent Spring Street.  Project will also provide improved public infrastructure to support 
renovation of an abandoned former mill complex on Water Street (Cable Mills) - which is 
intended to provide 84 affordable and market rate residential housing units. 

Environmental Factors:  Increases impervious area. 
 
Additional Information:  None. 
 
  

 
 
 
 



MassDOT-BRPC-OTP April 2014 Update 

 
 

Project Description Sheet 
 

Project ID 607429 Cost $ 500,000 

Town/City North Adams FFY 2018 Cost $ 562,432 

Name Route 2 @ Phelps Ave. AADT 15,000  

Start/End n/a Design Status (MassDOT) pre-25% 

Length n/a Project Score 3 

 
Description:  This section of Route 2 is on a sub-standard curve, and there have been some 
run-off road crashes (westbound) at this intersection.  The intersection is not an identified HSIP 
cluster.  The current concept is to modify the roadway alignment to achieve AASHTO 
compliance and super-elevate the curve to improve vehicle maneuverability through the 
intersection.  Other geometric improvements are also proposed to facilitate turning vehicle 
movements (school buses and trucks) that serve Greylock School on Phelps Avenue.  In 
addition, traffic signal and pedestrian crossing upgrades (Appalachian Trail crosses Route 2 at 
this location), and possible access management and re-alignment of one driveway (north side of 
Route 2) are also being considered to provide safer entry into the intersection. 

When traffic data is obtained, if intersection crash rate is above State average, then project 
could get point for safety. 

Proposed Geometric Design Improvements:  Improved curb radii to facilitate turning 
movements (especially trucks), adding super-elevation for improved curve navigation, potential 
driveway re-alignment.  

Proposed Traffic Control Improvements:  Upgrade existing traffic signal and pedestrian 
crossings. 

ROW:  Temporary construction easements and/or strip takings most likely required. 

Residential Traffic:  No anticipated effect. 
 
Proposed Improvements to Alternate Modes:  Improved riding surface for bicyclists through 
the intersection and improved sidewalks, curb-cut ramps, and crosswalks for pedestrians. 
 
Environmental Justice:  Project is within/adjacent to EJ population. 
 
Economic Development:  No anticipated effect. 
 
Environmental Factors:  Neutral. 
 
Additional Information:  None. 

  



MassDOT-BRPC-OTP April 2014 Update 

 
 

Project Description Sheet 
 

Project ID 601431 Cost $ 9,065,000 

Town/City Washington FFY 2018 Cost $ 10,196,892 

Name Washington Mountain Road AADT 1,000 (2% trucks) 

Start/End Becket TL to Dalton TL Design Status (MassDOT) 100% PS&E 

Length 6.8 miles Project Score 3 

 
Description:  This 6.8 mile highway project will rehabilitate Washington Mountain Road from 
the Dalton town line to the Becket town line.  Proposed pavement rehabilitation will consist of 
roadway reclamation and resurfacing with hot-mix asphalt.  Unpaved shoulder areas will be 
stabilized with dense graded crushed stone. Guard rail, new signs and pavement markings will 
also be included.  Most of the drainage system will be replaced in-kind; preserving existing 
discharge locations.  Two larger existing culverts (36 in to 48 in) will be replaced with new 
culverts of greater hydraulic capacity (8 ft to 9 ft).  It is anticipated that most of the proposed 
work will be accomplished within the existing municipal right-of-way. 
 
Proposed Geometric Design Improvements:  None. 
 
Proposed Traffic Control Improvements:  None. 
 
ROW:  Some temporary construction easements most likely required. 
 
Residential Traffic:  No anticipated effect. 
 
Proposed Improvements to Alternate Modes:  Improved riding surface for bicyclists. 
 
Environmental Justice:  Project is not within/adjacent to EJ population. 
 
Economic Development:  No anticipated effect. 
 
Environmental Factors:  The two larger replacement culverts (referenced in the project 
description) have been permitted by Army Corps; and project has cleared MassDOT’s 

Environmental Section. The new culverts will improve stream hydrology and improve fish and 
wildlife passage by accommodating the natural stream cross-section through the culvert. 
 
Additional Information:  None. 
 
 

 



 
 

 

BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

www.berkshireplanning.org 
 
SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:   Delegates and Alternates, Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nathaniel W. Karns, AICP, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  May 9, 2014 
 
SUBJ:  Consideration of Proposed Transportation Unified Planning Work Program for FY 2015 
 
 
 
The Commission should consider the proposed Transportation Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
for next year at its May 15th meeting and instruct its Chair how to vote on this important document at 
Berkshire Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) meeting.  That meeting will occur on May 20th at 
our office.  As the lead planning agency for the MPO, the Commission is responsible for developing this 
document. 
 
The UPWP formally determines which transportation planning projects will be conducted, primarily by 
BRPC staff, over the next federal fiscal year, staring on October 1.  The attached page provides a quick 
summary of our transportation planning study activity envisioned for next year.  The full document, which 
explains the specific activities in more detail and provides a budget for each of them, is still under 
development and will be posted on our website in the next few weeks to allow the public to be able to 
review and comment.   
 
There are four general areas in every UPWP.  First is to support the required planning process, 
including holding MPO meetings, preparing the monthly reports to MassDOT, developing the 
Transportation Improvement Program and the UPWP and managing the required public participation 
process.  About 1/4 of the general transportation and transit planning budgets (FHWA/PL and FTA-
5303) are required to support these activities.  There is additional strain on this particular budget area 
due to much more stringent Title VI reporting requirements. 
 
The second area is Technical Support, which includes GIS work, regional data and analysis, traffic data 
collection (primarily traffic counts), pavement management inventory, and travel forecasting.   
 
Planning Studies is always a focus, but the listed studies changes from year to year.  This is really where 
the most important, visible work aside from developing the Transportation Improvement Program is 
conducted.  The attached list of Planning Studies and Initiatives shows what we expect to accomplish.  It 
is the expectation, and one we support, of the Federal Highway Administration that at least 1/3 of our 
general transportation planning budget go for Planning Studies.  We are required to complete the 
update of the Regional Transportation Plan in FY 2015 so that will utilize a substantial portion of the 
resources available in this category. 
 



 
 

 

The final section consists of “Other Activities”.  We have traditionally used this for regional land use 
planning which has a connection to transportation demands, for Local Technical Assistance which is 
transportation related (this also includes our MEPA reviews of roadway or other transportation projects 
and the transportation impacts of other projects undergoing MEPA review) and our very substantial 
Scenic Byways Projects.  The first two are entirely funded through our general transportation planning 
program.  That program also provides a small amount of support for our regional scenic byways 
program in general.   
 
 
Attachment:  Planning Studies and Initiatives for Consideration in the 2015 UPWP 



 

Planning Studies and Initiatives for Consideration in the 2015 UPWP   
April 30, 2014 

 
Regional Transportation Plan 
 
Title VI/ADA 
 Transition Plan 
  
Green DOT  
 Bicycle Counts 
 Other related activities 
 
Special Studies 
 Monument Square Pedestrian Safety Study – North Adams 
 Pedestrian Safety Study - Dalton 
 Regional Bottleneck Analysis – location to be determined 
 Housatonic River Clean Up Transportation Impacts 
  
Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning 
 Annual trail counts, BBPC support, outreach/education, participation in Western New England 
 Greenway bikeway initiative. 

Activities that continue to identifying priority areas for non motorized improvements 
(widening, striping, signals and signage) and best practices based on different land use 
contexts (urban, suburban, rural, open space). 

 
Transportation Community and System Preservation 
 
 Develop model bylaws and design guidelines which promote effective access management 
 for communities.  
  
Regional Transit Planning 
 
 Data analysis and assistance to BRTA 
 
Safety Analysis 
  
 Compile updated accident data 
 Conduct a Road Safety Audit – Location to be determined. 
 
Climate Change 
 

 Evaluate the impact that Climate Change may have on regional transportation facilities (roads 
and bridges) with an emphasis on stream crossings.   
 

National Transit Database 
 
 Assist BRTA with NTD reporting efforts 



 

An Interstate Natural
 
Gas Facility on My Land?
 

What Do I 
Need to Know?

   Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

    Washington, DC   www.ferc.gov 

http:www.ferc.gov


ii 1 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

 

 

  

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

An Interstate Natural Gas 
Facility on My Land? 

What do I 
Need to know? 

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission is charged by Congress 
with evaluating whether interstate natural gas pipeline projects 
proposed by private companies should be approved. The Federal 
government does not propose, construct, operate, or own such 
projects. The Commission’s determination whether to approve such 
a project may affect you if your land is where a natural gas pipeline, 
other facilities, or underground storage fields might be located. 
We want you to know: 

n How the Commission’s procedures work; 

n What rights you have; 

n How the location of a pipeline or other facilities is decided; and 

n What safety and environmental issues might be involved. 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

Updated August 2013 



2 3 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

PROCESS FOR NATUR AL   
GAS CERTIFICATES 

Use of the Pre-Filing  
Environmental  Review (PF)  

Process is Approved (voluntary) 

Conduct Scoping to  
Determine Environmental  

Issues and Attempt to  
Resolve Issues 

Applicant files FERC  
Application 

FERC Issues Notice of  
Application 

Conduct Scoping   
(if the PF Process is not used) 

Issue EA or 
Draft EIS 

Respond to environmental  
comments / Issue Final EIS 

Commission Issues  
Order 

Contents 

Background..............................................................................................4 

How the Process Begins ........................................................................5 

Key Issues Involving Location of the Project  ..................................8 

Pipeline Installation Sequence  ........................................................ 11 

Pipeline Construction ........................................................................ 12 

Abandonment...................................................................................... 14 

Storage Fields  ....................................................................................... 15 

LNG Facilities ........................................................................................ 20 

Compressor Stations .......................................................................... 20 

The Responsibilities of Gas Companies......................................... 22 

Important Safety Issues ..................................................................... 25 

Further Environmental Issues .......................................................... 26 

Additional Information ..................................................................... 27 

Glossary of Terms ................................................................................ 28 



4 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

 
 

  

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

    
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

Background 
The Commission approves the location, construction and operation of  
interstate pipelines, facilities and storage fields involved in moving natural gas  
across state boundaries. The Commission also approves the abandonment of  
these facilities. 

Interstate pipelines crisscross the United States, moving nearly a quarter of the  
nation’s energy long distances to markets in the 48 contiguous states, and are  
vital to the economy.  Although pipelines generally are buried underground,  
they may have associated facilities that are above-ground such as taps, valves,  
metering stations, interconnection, pig launchers, pig receivers, or compressor  
stations. A natural gas storage field includes subsurface gas storage rights and  
there may be storage field pipelines and gas wells associated with the storage  
rights. A Pipeline Glossary is provided at the end of this brochure to help you  
understand some of the technical terms that are associated with pipeline  
construction and above-ground facilities.  

If a proposed pipeline route is on, or abuts your land, you will probably  
first learn of this from the natural gas company as it plans and studies the  
route during either the Commission’s voluntary Pre-filing Process or in the  
application development process. Once a company files an application  
requesting the Commission to issue a certificate authorizing the construction  
of a pipeline project, the company will mail you a copy of this brochure and  
other information within three days of the Commission issuing a Notice of  
Application. The Commission’s staff will prepare an environmental study of  
the proposal; either an Environmental Impact Statement or an Environmental  
Assessment, depending on the scope of the project. For major construction  
projects, local media may be notified and public meetings may be held. You  
will have an opportunity to express your views and to have them considered.  
You will also have the opportunity to learn the views of other interested parties.  
The Commission may approve the project, with or without modifications, or  
reject it. If it is approved and you fail to reach an easement agreement with the  
company, access to and compensation for use of your land will be determined  
by a court. 

Understandably, the location of pipelines and other facilities may be of concern to  
landowners. The Commission’s process for assessing pipeline applications is open  
and public, and designed to keep all parties informed. 

This brochure generally explains the Commission’s certificate process and 
addresses some of the basic concerns of landowners. The Commission’s Office of 
External Affairs at 1-866-208-3372 will be happy to answer any further 
questions about the procedures involved. 

How the Process Begins 

Q: How will I first hear about proposed facility construction? 

A: If you are located in the vicinity of the project you may first learn of it 
through newspaper notices. If you are an owner of property that may be 
affected by the project, you will probably first hear of it from the natural gas 
company as it collects the environmental information or conducts surveys 
required for the Commission application. The company may ask you for 
permission to access your land to conduct civil and environmental surveys. 
It is also possible that the company will contact you to discuss obtaining an 
easement prior to filing the application. In the case of a compressor station or 
other above-ground facility, the company will often offer to purchase, or obtain 
an option to purchase, the property for the station or facility. This usually occurs 
prior to the filing of the application. 

For a storage field, rights on certain parcels of land may only involve subsurface 
storage rights. The company will also notify you of the filing of the application 
with the Commission. 

Q: How can I obtain more details about 
the company’s application? 

A: A copy of the company’s application can be obtained from the company, 
although the company is not obligated to provide voluminous material 
or material that is difficult to reproduce. You may also obtain a copy for a 
nominal copying charge from the Commission’s Public Reference Room. Call 
202-502-8371 for details. The application may also be obtained through the 
Commission’s Web site, www.ferc.gov, using the “eLibrary” link and the project’s 
docket number. User assistance is available at 1-866-208-3676. Within three days 
of assignment of a docket number, the application will also be available in at 
least one location in each county in which the facility is located. 

5 

http:www.ferc.gov
jaymestanley
Sticky Note
Marked set by jaymestanley

jaymestanley
Sticky Note
Marked set by jaymestanley

jaymestanley
Sticky Note
Marked set by jaymestanley



6 7 

Note that in some cases you will not be able to view or print copies of large-
scale maps or similar information about the location of the project from the  
Commission’s Web site. However, the Web site will provide instructions for  
obtaining the material. 

Q: How do I make my views known?  

A:  You may contact the natural gas company through the contact person listed  
in the notification letter you receive from the company.  

There are two ways to make your views known to the Commission: first, if you  
want the Commission to consider your views on the various environmental issues  
involved in the location of the facility, you can do so by simply writing a letter.  
When submitting a letter to the Secretary of the Commission, you should identify  
the project’s docket number in order for the comment to be successfully entered  
into the record on the eLibrary system.  

There are several steps in the Commission’s environmental review process.  
The Commission affords you the opportunity to comment at various stages  
in this process. Details are available from the Commission’s Office of External  
Affairs at 1-866-208-3372. Check the Commission’s Web site for details on filing  
electronically. By filing comments, your views will be considered and addressed   
in the environmental documents or a final order. Additionally, you will be placed  
on a mailing list to receive environmental documents in the case. You can also use  
eRegistration and eSubscription (see  www.ferc.gov) to keep track of individual  
proceedings at FERC. Users with an eRegistration account may subscribe to  
specific dockets and receive email notification when a document   
is added to eLibrary for the subscribed docket.  

Q: What is an intervenor?  

A:  You may file to become what is known as an intervenor. You may obtain 
instructions on how to do this from the Office of External Affairs or on our 
Web site at http://www.ferc.gov/help/how-to/intervene.asp. Becoming an  
intervenor is not complicated and gives you official rights. As an intervenor, you 
will receive the applicant’s filings and other Commission documents related 
to the case and materials filed by other interested parties. You will also be able 
to file briefs, appear at hearings and be heard by the courts if you choose to 
appeal the Commission’s final ruling.  However, along with these rights come 
responsibilities. As an intervenor, you will be obligated to mail copies of what 

you file with the Commission to all the other parties at the time of filing. In 
major cases, there may be hundreds of parties. You may file to become an 
intervenor by sending a request to intervene by mail or overnight services to: 

Secretary 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
888 First Street, N.E. 
Washington, DC 20426 

We prefer that comments or requests for intervention be submitted  
electronically through the Commission’s Web site (www.ferc.gov).  If you   
submit comments or requests through eFiling or eComment, there is no need  
to send paper copies.  However, if you submit a request for intervention through  
the mail, you should include 14 copies of your request.  

You must normally file for intervenor status within 21 days of our notice of  
the application in the Federal Register, although the Commission may accept  
late intervention if good reasons are given. Visit the Federal Register at   
http://www.gpoaccess.gov/fr/index.html. You may also file for intervenor status  
for the purposes of addressing environmental issues during the comment period  
for a draft environmental impact statement. 

Please note: “PF” dockets are assigned to projects that are in the pre-filing or  
planning stage. There is no provision for becoming an intervenor in PF dockets.  
However, once the pre-filing stage has been completed and an application has been  
filed, you may file for intervenor status.  

C  U  S  TO  M E  R  A  S  S  I  S  TA  N  C  E  

For further assistance and public inquiries, please contact: 
Office of External Affairs 
1-202-502-8004  1-866-208-3372 (Toll-free) 
customer@ferc.gov 

For assistance with ferc.gov or eFiling, please contact: 
FERC Online Technical Support 
1-202-502-6652  1-866-208-3676 (Toll-free) 
ferconlinesupport@ferc.gov 
 

For materials and copying assistance, please contact: 
Public Reference Room 
1-202-502-8371  1-866-208-3676 (Toll-free) 
public.referenceroom@ferc.gov 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 



8 9 

Key Issues Involving   
Location of the Project 

Q: How is the pipeline route, compressor station or storage field  
location selected?  

A:  The natural gas company proposes the route or location, which is then  
examined by the Commission. The company must study alternative routes or  
locations to avoid or minimize damage to the environment. The Commission,  
intervenors, or any commenter may also suggest alternatives and modifications  
to reduce the effects on buildings, fences, crops, water supplies, soil, vegetation,  
wildlife, air quality, noise, safety, landowner interests and more. The Commission  
staff’s Alternatives analysis will consider whether the pipeline can be placed  
near or within an existing pipeline, power line, highway or railroad right-of-way.  
Storage fields are usually located in depleted oil or natural gas production fields  
or in salt deposits. Therefore, their location is fixed by geologic conditions.  
However, the facilities needed to develop and use a storage field can be moved  
to some extent. 

Q: How do natural gas companies obtain a right-of-way?  

A:  The company negotiates a right-of-way easement and compensation for the  
easement with each landowner. Landowners may be paid for loss of certain uses  
of the land during and after construction, loss of any other resources, and any  
damage to property. If the Commission approves the project and no agreement  
with the landowner is reached, the company may acquire the easement under  
eminent domain (a right given to the company by statute to take private land  
for Commission-authorized use) with a court determining compensation.  

Q: Who pays taxes on the right-of-way? 

A:  The landowner pays taxes on the right-of-way unless a local taxing authority  
grants relief. The company simply has an easement across a portion of the land. 

Q: How large is the right-of-way and how is it maintained?  

A:  It is generally 75 to 100 feet wide during construction, although extra space is  
usually required at road or stream crossings or because of soil conditions. 

The permanent right-of-way is usually about 50 feet wide. Routine mowing or  
cutting of vegetation is done no more than once every three years. A ten-foot
wide corridor, centered on the pipeline, may be mowed or cut more frequently  
to facilitate periodic surveys and inspections. In cropland and residential areas  
the right-of-way is maintained by the landowner consistent with the presence of  
a pipeline. 

Q: How large is a compressor station or storage field?  

A:  Usually the natural gas company  
purchases ten to forty acres for a  
compressor station, of which about five  
acres are actually used for construction.  
A storage field could encompass many  
hundreds or even thousands of acres,  
depending on the geologic structure.  
Storage fields also frequently include a  
buffer zone or protection area forming  
a halo of some hundreds of acres  
surrounding the storage field itself. 

Q: Must the company comply with local, county and state laws  
and zoning ordinances?  

A:  Generally, yes. If there is a conflict, however, between these requirements and  
what the Commission requires; the Commission requirement prevails. 

Q: How close can I build to the facilities?  

A:  For a pipeline this depends on the terms of the easement agreement.  But  
build is usually allowed up to the edge of the right-of-way.  

For a compressor station, the site is usually owned by the company. If you own  
property adjacent to the site, you may build on it.  

For storage fields, unless there are surface facilities or pipelines, you may build  
anywhere on the surface. If you or someone else wishes to drill wells which  
would penetrate the storage formation, you must coordinate that activity with  
the company, and usually the state authority regulating well drilling. 

Compressor Station 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 



10 11 

Q: What about bushes, trees, fences, driveways and so forth?  

A:   Trees with roots that may damage the pipeline or its coating and other  
obstructions that prevent observation from aircraft during maintenance are  
usually not allowed. Driveways and other improvements without foundations  
are normally allowed. All improvements are subject to the terms of the  
easement and are subject to negotiation as long as the pipeline maintenance  
and safety are not affected. 

Q.  How long will the right-of-way be there? 

A:  Part of it is temporary and will be restored immediately after construction.   
The permanent right-of-way will remain until the Commission determines it can  
be abandoned by the pipeline company.  This can be 20 to 50 years or more. 

Q.  In general, will I still be able to use the right-of-way? 

A:   The easement agreement will specify restricted uses on or across the right-
of-way and any types of uses for which the company’s permission must be  
sought.  The continuation of past agricultural uses and practices on or across  
the right-of-way would be permitted.  Buildings and large trees are usually not  
allowed.  Special uses or activities that might have an impact on pipeline design  
(such as planned logging roads or drain tiles) should be negotiated with the  
pipeline company to minimize future conflicts.  

Q: To what depth would the pipeline be buried underground? 

A:  The depth of cover for natural gas  
pipelines is regulated by the Pipeline and  
Hazardous Materials Safety Administration,  
within the U.S. Department of  
Transportation. In normal soil conditions,  
the minimum required is 30-36 inches  
between the top of the pipeline and the  
land surface.  Additional cover is provided  
at road and waterbody crossings, while less  
cover (a minimum of 18 inches) is required in consolidated rock.  In special cases,  
the pipeline could be buried deeper (48 – 60 inches) where agricultural practices  
or other issues warrant additional cover. 

Pipeline 

Q: What if I have problems with erosion or other issues during  
restoration and/or maintenance of the right-of-way?  

A:  The landowner should first contact the natural gas company to address  
and resolve the issue. If the landowner is not satisfied that the problem has  
been  adequately addressed, he or she can contact the Commission’s Dispute  
Resolution  Division Helpline at (877) 337-2237 or send an email to ferc.adr@ferc. 
gov.  

Pipeline Installation Sequence 

After a company has received authorization from FERC as well as all  
necessary permits, and has an easement on a property, construction   
would proceed as follows: 

  1) The civil survey (and any uncompleted environmental surveys) would be  
completed and the construction right-of-way would be marked/staked  
for the clearing crew. 

2) The clearing crew would remove any trees or brush within the right-of
way that would interfere with construction. 

 3) Temporary erosion control devices would be installed as required.

 4)  Next, the right-of-way would be graded. 

 5) Topsoil would be separated from subsoil in agricultural/residential areas  
(or in other areas requested during the easement negotiations). 

 6)  Heavy equipment, such as backhoes or trenching machines, would then  
dig the trench. In areas where bedrock is near the surface, blasting may  
be required. 

 7)  The pipe would be delivered to the right-of-way in segments (called  
joints). 

8) The pipe would be bent to fit the trench and welded together. All welds  
would be tested prior to placing the pipe in the trench. 

 9) The trench would be back filled and if topsoil was removed it would be  
returned.  

10) Construction debris would be removed.  

11)  The right-of-way would be regraded, seeded, and temporary and  
permanent erosion control devices would be installed.  

12)  After the right-of-way has revegetated the temporary erosion control  
devices would be removed.  

13) Prior to gas flowing, the pipeline would be pressure tested (normally  
with water) to ensure it does not leak. 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 



12 13Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

Pipeline Construction 
A graphic representation of the pipeline  
installation sequence.

Moving assembly line (graphic not to scale)

Ditching (rock)Clearing  Ditching (rock-free) Padding  Stringing
and grading ditch bottom continued below

Inspection and repair of coatingBending Welding X-ray and weld repair Coating welds Lowering in Backfill Pressure testing 
for leaks

Cleanup

Restoring residential area Reseeding the right-of-way
Restored right-of-way



14 15 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

 

  
 
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

Abandonment 

Q: What is abandonment in place? 

A: A pipeline company may request authorization for a pipeline to be 
“abandoned in place.”  In this case, the pipeline is physically separated from 
its source of gas and is no longer maintained.  The pipeline is sealed at both 
ends and left in the ground.  A company may revert the easement back to the 
affected property owners; in certain cases where multiple pipelines exist in the 
same corridor, the company may continue to hold the easements and maintain 
the right-of-way according to its vegetation maintenance practices. 

Q: Can the pipeline be used after abandonment? 

A: In some cases a pipeline company may ask to abandon a pipeline for use 
as a natural gas transportation line, but reserve the right to convert that line 
to another use, such as the transportation of crude oil or other petroleum 
products.  Easements agreements affected by conversion transactions may 
transfer to the new operator. 

Q: If the pipeline is being abandoned will it be removed 
from my property? 

A: The Commission may decide there are environmental or other conditions 
that should determine the disposition of the pipeline. If not, the easement 
agreement that you or previous owners of the land signed may stipulate 
whether the pipeline is to be removed. You may also come to some agreement 
with the company on what they will do with the pipeline. Usually, above-ground 
facilities are removed. 

Q: If a company abandons a pipeline, can it keep an easement 
on my property? 

A: It depends on the terms of the easement agreement and may be subject to 
negotiation between the landowner and the pipeline company.  If there is more 
than one pipeline, the pipeline company will keep the easement. 

Q: Will I be notified if abandonment is proposed? 

A:  You will probably be notified by the company if it proposes to relinquish 
the easement as part of the abandonment and the easement is not being 
transferred to another company. Otherwise, you may be notified by the 
Commission as part of the environmental analysis of the project. 

Stor age Fields 

Q: What will happen to my property if a storage field 
is located beneath it? 

A: Possibly nothing, since the storage field 
itself is usually thousands of feet beneath the 
ground surface. Wells are needed to inject 
and withdraw the stored natural gas or to 
monitor field conditions (observation wells). 
The wells require a surface site of roughly one 
acre for drilling and less than one tenth of 
an acre for the surface wellhead piping and 
other facilities. 

If there are no facilities to be constructed on 
your property, the company will only need 
the storage rights to the geologic formation 
in which the natural gas would be stored. 
This is also the case for any property within 
any designated “buffer zone” or “protective 
area” around the actual storage field. 

Q: Why is storage important? 

A:  Underground natural gas storage can be used to balance the load 
requirements of gas users.  Storage fields are the warehouses that provide a 
ready supply of natural gas to serve the market during periods of high demand. 
For example, in the Midwest and the Mid-Atlantic regions, natural gas is 
primarily used during the winter because many homes are heated by natural 
gas.  To accommodate this load profile, natural gas is injected into storage fields 

Well drilling rig 



16 17 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

  
  

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
  
  

   
 

   
  

  
 

  

during the warmer months (April - October), and withdrawn in the colder 
months (November - March).  However, since the 1980s, most new power 
generation equipment has been fired by natural gas, which has created summer 
peaking requirements for natural gas to accommodate air conditioning loads in 
many areas of the country. Storage helps to meet peak demand requirements 
both in winter and in summer. 

Q: What types of facilities are associated with storage? 

A: Most natural gas storage facilities in the U.S. consist of underground 
formations, combined with above-ground equipment. These facilities include 
wells (injection/withdrawal and observation, water supply, water disposal), 
wellhead valve assemblies, gathering lines (field lines, headers), metering and 
compression facilities, dehydration units, generators or transformers,  associated 
electric equipment, roads, sheds/buildings and pipeline pigging facilities. A list of 
natural gas facilities that fall under FERC jurisdiction is available on the agency’s 
Web site at http://www.ferc.gov/industries/gas/indus-act/storage/fields-by
owner.pdf . Natural gas storage facilities that are owned and operated by natural 
gas distribution systems and used to deliver gas to their customers fall under the 
authority of state regulatory agencies. 

Q: Are there different types of underground storage fields? 

A: Most storage of natural gas takes advantage of natural geologic formations 
(reservoirs).  There are three types of underground storage fields: (1) depleted oil 
and/or gas fields, (2) aquifers, and (3) salt caverns. 

Depleted Oil and/or Gas Fields: Most of the natural gas storage in the 
United States consists of naturally-occurring oil or gas reservoirs that have 
been depleted through production. These consist of porous and permeable 
underground rock formations (usually 1,000 to 5,000 feet thick) that are 
confined by impermeable rock barriers and identified by a single natural 
pressure. Typically, this type of field has one injection/withdrawal cycle each year 
– gas is injected in summer and withdrawn in winter. This type of storage facility 
is normally used for long term or seasonal system supply, although in some 
instances it is used for peak day deliveries. These formations contain volumes 
of gas that are permanently stored in the field (called cushion or base gas) 
that help to maintain the underground pressure required to operate the field. 
Storage gas is then added to the field. In field storage the base gas is generally 
about 50% of the total reservoir capacity. 

Aquifer Storage Fields: This type of storage field uses a permeable rock formation 
containing water, called an “aquifer.” The nature of the water in 
the aquifer may vary from fresh water to saturated brine. An aquifer would 
have a high cushion gas requirement, generally between 50% and 80%, 
as the water in the portion of the reservoir being used for storage must be displaced 
constantly. They also have high deliverability rates but are limited to one injection/ 
withdrawal cycle each year. 

Salt Cavern Storage: This type of storage field uses caverns that are leached or 
mined out of underground salt deposits (salt domes or bedded salt formations). 
Salt caverns usually operate with about 20% to 30% cushion gas and the remaining 
capacity as working gas.  Working gas can be recycled more than once per year 
(some up to 10 – 12 times per year), the injection and withdrawal rates being 
limited only by the capability of the surface facilities. Salt cavern storage has high 
deliverability and injection capabilities and is usually used for peak deliverability 
purposes, daily or even hourly.  Most of the naturally-occurring salt caverns in the 
United States lie closer to the producer region—in Louisiana, Texas, and the Gulf 
Coast. 

For more detailed information about natural gas storage, visit these Web sites: 

• FERC Staff Report on Underground Natural Gas Storage 
http://www.ferc.gov/EventCalendar/Files/20041020081349-final-gs-report.pdf 

• EIA: Basics of Underground Natural Gas Storage 
http://www.eia.doe.gov/pub/oil_gas/natural_gas/analysis_publications/ 
storagebasics/storagebasics.html 

• NaturalGas.org: Storage of Natural Gas 
http://www.naturalgas.org/naturalgas/storage.asp 

• The Energy Information Administration (EIA) 
http://www.eia.doe.gov/oil_gas/natural_gas/info_glance/natural_gas.html 

Q: How are storage field boundaries determined? 

A:  Boundaries are determined by the geologic characteristics of the formation in 
which the gas will be stored.  Most also have buffer zones surrounding the portion 
of the reservoir to limit migration of the stored gas and to protect 
the integrity of the field. 

http://www.eia.doe.gov/oil_gas/natural_gas/info_glance/natural_gas.html
http://www.naturalgas.org/naturalgas/storage.asp
http:NaturalGas.org
http://www.eia.doe.gov/pub/oil_gas/natural_gas/analysis_publications
http://www.ferc.gov/EventCalendar/Files/20041020081349-final-gs-report.pdf
http://www.ferc.gov/industries/gas/indus-act/storage/fields-by


18 19 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

 
  

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

   
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

Q: Can companies use the ground under my property without 
paying for it?  Am I required to sign an easement? 

A:  A company that owns/operates a storage field cannot use the underground 
portion of storage facilities without either owning mineral rights or having 
some form of agreement with the owner of the mineral rights.  Compensation 
for that use will come as a result of the property/mineral rights conveyed to 
the company by the current owner or attached to the deed from a previous 
property owner.  Those property/mineral rights, depending on the facts of 
the particular situation, will most likely be in the form of a storage lease or an 
easement agreement. 

A FERC certificate is not required in order for a company to negotiate the 
acquisition of a storage lease or easement.  However, if FERC has issued a 
certificate approving the creation of a new storage field (or expansion of an 
existing field), that indicates that the agency has concluded that the storage 
field is needed and is in the public interest.  In accordance with the Natural Gas 
Act (a law passed by the United States Congress in 1938), the FERC certificate 
gives the company the right to ask a state or federal court to award the needed 
property rights to the company where voluntary good faith negotiation has 
failed. 

If the owner of the property/mineral rights and the company do not reach an 
agreement, the company can go to court to obtain the necessary rights through 
eminent domain.  In such cases, the court will determine the amount that the 
company must pay to the owner of these rights.  Similarly, if the storage field 
operations affect the surface property through construction of facilities or by 
reserving access rights, the company must also reach an agreement with the 
owner of the surface rights or go to court to obtain any necessary property 
rights through eminent domain.  The court will determine the amount that the 
company must pay the owner of the surface rights. The state or federal court 
procedure is known as condemnation (or the exercise of eminent domain). 

Q:	  How far from my home can a storage facility be located? 
If the company is just using the area under my land, do they 
require access to my land? 

A:  The storage reservoir itself is underground and does not require surface 
facilities on every property within the storage field boundaries.  However, 

the company may need to construct and 
operate facilities on the surface, including 
injection and withdrawal wells to get the 
gas into and out of the subsurface rock 
formations, well lines that connect those 
wells to other pipelines in the storage field, 
compressor stations to pump the gas, and 
facilities that are used to clean and monitor 
the interior of certain underground pipelines. 
Where surface facilities are needed, the 
storage lease or easement agreements 
developed between the landowner and 
the storage facility operator usually indicate 
minimum spacing of the facilities with 
respect to existing structures, like your home. 

In most cases, if the company does not have 
any surface facilities on your property, the 

company would not need access to your property.  However, the company 
may need access to your land to check the integrity of a pipeline crossing your 
property or to monitor the effects of previously abandoned facilities (such as 
an old gas well) or facilities owned by another company to insure that those 
facilities do not interfere with the company’s storage operations.  Because the 
need for access cannot be predicted, the storage lease or easement agreement 
typically references the right of the company to enter your property when 
needed.  The company should inform the property owner when its employees 
plan to enter the property. 

Q:	  Is all storage in the U.S. under the jurisdiction of the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission? 

A:  No. Only natural gas storage that is used in interstate commerce is under 
FERC jurisdiction.  There are approximately 500 existing underground natural 
gas storage facilities in the United States.  Of those facilities, approximately 50% 
are under FERC jurisdiction, and the remaining are under state and/or local 
jurisdiction or are privately owned and unregulated. 

Underground storage 



20 21 

LNG Facilities 

Natural gas can also be converted to liquefied natural gas (LNG) and stored  
in above-ground tanks.  Facilities for making LNG are used by many gas  
distribution companies for short-term peaking requirements, and are regulated  
under state authority. However, The Commission regulates a small number of  
similar facilities that are connected to interstate natural gas pipelines.   

The United States also has several large LNG terminals, which include large  
LNG storage tanks as part of their operations. Traditionally, imported LNG  
is regasified before it enters the system of interstate natural gas pipelines  
for delivery to consumers. The Gulf Coast area has the country’s highest  
concentration of existing and planned LNG terminals. In this region, salt caverns  
and depleted reservoirs also may be used as gas storage. 

The growing production of natural gas in the United States from shale deposits  
has led to rising interest in developing liquefaction facilities for the export of  
natural gas to other countries.  In this case, some LNG terminals would be  
used to export gas. Domestic natural gas would arrive at an LNG terminal via  
pipeline in a gaseous state, then liquefied and placed on LNG vessels for delivery  
to international consumers. While the Commission has the responsibility to  
evaluate and authorize LNG facilities, any company that exports natural gas also  
must receive an export license from the U.S. Department of Energy. 

Compressor Stations 

Q:  What is a compressor station?  

A:  Compressor stations house natural gas fired engines, turbines or electric  
motors that drive compressors  to compress, or pump, natural gas to move  
it through the system. They are located strategically along a pipeline route.   
Compressor stations associated with interstate natural gas pipeline systems are  
regulated by FERC. Compressors also are used by producers in gathering facilities  
that are not regulated by FERC. 

Electric motor-driven compressors are very clean, and emit no particulate  
matter or pollutants. Natural gas-fired engines and turbines burn a portion of  

the natural gas in the pipeline and would emit pollutants.  Air emissions are  
regulated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and state permitting  
authorities.  These regulations are applicable to any source that emits or has  
the potential to emit any air contaminants, as defined in the Clean Air Act.  
Companies are required to obtain these federal permits, as applicable.   

Q:  How noisy is a compressor station?  

A:  The noise attributable to a new compressor station, compression added to  
an existing station, or any modification, upgrade or update of an existing station,  
must not exceed a day-night average noise level of 55 decibels at any pre
existing noise-sensitive areas such as schools, hospitals or residences. Companies  
perform noise surveys during initial operation of the approved facilities and  
report the results to FERC to document compliance. 

Q: Can compressor stations cause vibration at my home? 

A:  Vibration is caused by direct vibration or by low-frequency noise emitted  
from a compressor station.  This is similar  
to what happens when noise from a  
speaker causes the floor to shake or when  
a helicopter flying overhead causes a  
window to rattle.   

Companies are required to comply with  
FERC’s rule at 18CFR 380.12(k)(4)(v)(B)  
to ensure that there is no increase in  
perceptible vibration from the operation  
of the compressor station.  

Q: How much noise is permitted from drilling activities?  

A:  Directional drilling is sometimes used to install underground pipeline  
through sensitive areas. Drilling is also used to install vertical wells at storage  
facilities. Drilling should be conducted with the goal of keeping noise impacts at  
noise-sensitive areas below a day-night level of 55 decibels. States may have their  
own noise level requirements for construction sites. 

Compressor station 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 



22 23 

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land? 

Q; Will the compressor station affect my air quality? 

A:  Numerous federal and state air quality rules and permits may apply to each  
compressor station.  FERC will identify the required permits and regulations for  
each compressor station.  We also identify the impacts on local and regional air  
quality from construction and operation of each compressor station.  

Q: Are there special safety or fire issues associated with   
compressor stations? 

A:  All interstate natural gas facilities, including compressor stations, are required  
to comply with the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Minimum Safety  
Standards. Compressor stations are constructed with many safety systems, such  
as gas and fire detection systems and emergency shutdown equipment.  These  
systems are designed to ensure that in the event of an accident, the compressor  
station would be safely shut down with minimal risk to the public. 

The Responsibilities of Gas Companies 

Q: Must companies post bonds to guarantee performance?  

A:  No, but the Commission inspects the right-of-way during and after  
construction to ensure that the terms of its certificate have been met. 

Q: Can the pipeline company come on my land without   
my permission?  

A:  State or local trespass laws prevail until a certificate is issued by the  
Commission. Some states have laws that allow a company to get access to  
property for survey purposes. Procedures vary by state. Once a certificate  
is  issued or an easement/survey agreement or court order is obtained, the  
company may come onto your land. Usually the company will notify you in  
advance. 

Q: When can they start to build?  

A:  Construction cannot commence until the Commission issues a certificate,  
the company accepts it, the company receives all other relevant  permits and  

authorizations, and the company complies  with environmental conditions  
attached to the certificate. For most large pipelines, the time from filing an 
application to approval ranges from one year to two years. Once a certificate i
issued, construction may start within a few weeks of the company having 
completed any outstanding studies or having met other preconditions set by 
the Commission. 

Q: Why would the company approach me about an easement  
before the project is approved?  

A:  Because of planning and lead time, the company may try to obtain  
easement agreements in advance. Also, a company must conduct  
environmental studies before it files an application with the Commission.   
For these studies to be as complete as  
possible, the company will try to obtain  
access to all of the proposed right-of-way.   
If Commission approval is ultimately denied,  
or the route changes, the initial easement  
agreement with the landowner is usually  
void (depending on the wording of the  
right-of-way or access contract). Further,  
disputes over the wording of an easement  
agreement are subject to state law. 

Q: Can the company place more than one pipeline on my  
property? Can the pipeline and the easement be used for  
anything other than natural gas?  

A:  The Commission grants a certificate and states that eminent domain may 
only be used for the proposed pipeline and related facilities in the exact location  
described and only for the transportation of natural gas. If the company 
wishes  to install another natural gas pipeline under Commission jurisdiction,  
it must obtain additional approval from the Commission. Other utilities may 
wish to use an adjacent or overlapping easement, but they would have to 
obtain approval from you or from another permitting authority that can grant 
eminent domain (usually the state). Of course, you may agree to other uses. 

s 

Valve 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 



24 25 

Q:  Can the company construct above-ground facilities on the right-
of-way?  

A:  Yes, if they have been approved by the Commission. Above-ground facilities,  
such as valves, pig launchers and pig receivers, are commonly placed in the right-
of-way and are strategically placed along the pipeline system for operation and  
safety purposes. 

Q: How close can the pipeline be to other    
pipelines or utility facilities?  

A:  Pipelines must be at least a foot from any underground structure and two  
to three feet below ground. Companies usually want their pipelines to be 25  
feet from another pipeline. If space permits, pipelines can be placed in another  
utility’s right-of-way. 

Q: Can I receive service from the pipeline?  

A:  No, not in most cases. Generally speaking, interstate pipelines are operating  
at pressures incompatible with direct residential use, which is provided by local  
distribution companies. 

Q: Can a pipeline be placed in a river or the ocean?  

A:  A pipeline can be placed in the ocean or across a river; however, it is usually  
not acceptable to place one longitudinally down a river or other stream. There  
are different environmental, cost, design and safety issues associated with  
construction in a water body. 

Q: How soon after construction will the company restore   
the land? 

A:  Commission rules require restoration as soon as the trench is backfilled and 
weather permits.  

Q. What authorization allows the pipeline company to use  
eminent domain? 

A:  If the Commission authorizes the project and the necessary easements  
cannot be negotiated, an applicant is granted the right of eminent domain  

under section 7(h) of the Natural Gas Act and the procedures set forth under  
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (Rule 71A). Under these conditions, the  
landowner could receive compensation as determined by the courts.  

Important Safety Issues 

Q: Who is responsible for safety? 

A:  While the Commission has oversight in ensuring that pipeline and above-
ground facilities are safely constructed and installed, once the natural gas is  
flowing in the new system, the U.S. Department of Transportation‘s Pipeline and  
Hazardous Pipeline Materials Safety Administration takes over the responsibility  
during the operation for the lifetime of the pipeline. The U.S. Department of  
Transportation is also responsible for setting the federal safety standards for  
natural gas (and other) pipelines and related facilities. The   
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration can be contacted   
at 202-366-4595 or at  http://www.phmsa.dot.gov. 

Q: Are pipelines safe? 

A:  Accidents are rare and usually result from  
outside forces or unauthorized action by  
someone other than the pipeline company.   
The U.S. Department of Transportation enforces  
strict safety standards and requires safety  
checks.  

Q: Does natural gas smell? 

A:  Natural gas is odorless. An odorant, which  
smells like rotten eggs, is generally added for  
quick leak detection in more populated areas  
on interstate transmission pipelines and in  
local distribution pipelines in accordance with  
U.S. Department of Transportation safety  
regulations. Safety Inspectors 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 



26 27 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

  

  

   
 

  

    
 

 

 

 

 

Further Environmental Issues 

Q: What if my property contains endangered species, wetlands, 
or archeological sites? 

A: Endangered species must be protected 
from the effects of construction and this 
could affect the location of the pipeline 
or other facilities. In the case of wetlands, 
if proper crossing procedures are used 
and no alternatives are available, they may 
be used for a pipeline right-of-way. If an 
archeological or historic site is eligible for 
listing in the National Register of Historic 
Places, impact to it must be minimized. It 
either will be excavated and studied, or the pipeline will be rerouted to avoid it. 
Landowners who want them usually are permitted to keep any artifacts after 
they are properly studied, subject to state law. 

Q: Environmental studies were mentioned earlier. 
How do they work? 

A: A Notice of Intent (NOI) to prepare an environmental assessment (EA) or an 
environmental impact statement (EIS) is issued for most major proposals. It is 
sent to federal, state and local agencies, local media and libraries, environmental 
groups, and the affected owners of any land that would be crossed. For some 
major projects the NOI may announce a schedule of public meetings along 
the proposed route. The NOI seeks comments from interested parties on the 
scope of the environmental document, and the comments must be submitted 
to the Commission, normally within 30 days. After the comment period, the 
Commission staff will prepare an EA or a Draft EIS outlining its findings and 
recommendations. For major proposals, further comments are sought during 
45 days allotted for review of a Draft EIS or 30 days in the case of an EA. These 
comments are addressed in the Final EIS or the final order granting or denying 
the application. 

Wetlands 

Additional Information 

F O R  A D D I T I O N A L  I N F O R M AT I O N ,  CO N TAC T:  

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
Office of External Affairs 
888 First Street NE, Washington, DC 20426 
Toll Free: 1-866-208-3372 
E-mail: customer@ferc.gov 
www.ferc.gov 

Dispute Resolution Division Helpline 
Toll Free: 1-877-337-2237 
E-mail: ferc.adr@ferc.gov 

Other related FERC documents you may find helpful 
are listed below. These are available on our web site. 

The following can be found at: 
http://www.ferc.gov/industries/gas/enviro/guidelines.asp 

n Guidelines for Reporting On Cultural Resources Investigations 

n Handbook for Using Third-party Contractors to Prepare Environmental 
Assessments & Environmental Impact Statements (EIS) 

n Upland Erosion Control, Revegetation and Maintenance Plan 

n Wetland and Waterbody Construction and 
Mitigation Procedures 

http://www.ferc.gov/for-citizens/citizen-guides.asp 

n Your Guide to Electronic Information at FERC 

n An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on my Land 

n Blanket Certificate Program: Notice to landowners 

http://www.ferc.gov/for-citizens/citizen-guides.asp
http://www.ferc.gov/industries/gas/enviro/guidelines.asp
mailto:ferc.adr@ferc.gov
http:www.ferc.gov
mailto:customer@ferc.gov


 

 

28 29 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

An Interstate Natural Gas Facility on My Land?
What Do I Need to Know?

OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

Glossary of Terms  

Glossary of Terms supplied courtesy of the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials   
Safety Administration and FERC staff. For further information, please consult the  
PHMSA web site at http://www.phmsa.dot.gov. 

CO M PR E S S O R  S TAT I O N S  
Compressor Stations are facilities located along a natural gas pipeline that house and  
protect compressors. Compressors are used to compress (or pump) the gas to move it  
through the system. Compressor stations are strategically placed along the pipeline to  
boost the system pressure to maintain required flow rates.  

E A S E M E N T  
An easement is an acquired privilege or right, such as a right-of-way, afforded a person  
or company to make limited use of another person’s or company’s real property. For  
example, the municipal water company may have an easement across your property  
for the purpose of installing and maintaining a water line. Similarly, oil and natural gas  
pipeline companies acquire easements from property owners to establish rights-of
way for construction and operation of their pipelines.  

G AT H E R I N G  L I N E  
Pipelines, generally small in diameter, used to transport oil or gas from the well to a  
processing facility or a mainline pipeline. Gathering facilities, which can include the  
gathering lines and compressor stations associated with gathering, are not regulated  
by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.  

H Y D R AU L I C  F R AC T U R I N G  
Also called “fracking,” this refers to a process of fracturing  
rock using a pressurized liquid.  This is usually water mixed  
with sand and chemicals, injected deep within the ground  
through a piped well bore. This technique is commonly used  
to produce natural gas or oil from shale, tight or coal seam  
formations.  

L AT E R A L  
A lateral is a segment of a pipeline that branches off the  
main or transmission line to transport the product to a  
termination point, such as a tank farm or a metering station.  

L AU N C H E R  
A launcher is a pipeline component that is used for inserting  
an inline inspection tool, cleaning pig, or other device into a pressurized pipeline. After  
performing its task, the tool or pig is removed via receiver. 

Fracking rig 

L I Q U E FAC T I O N  
Liquefaction refers to the process of converting natural gas (methane) to a liquid to  
facilitate transportation or storage.  This process requires removing impurities and  
cooling the methane to -260°F.   

LO O P 
A loop is a segment of pipeline installed adjacent to  
an existing pipeline and connected to it at both  
ends. A loop allows more gas to be moved through  
the system.  

M E T E R I N G  A N D  R E G U L AT I N G  (M & R)   
S TAT I O N S  
Metering and regulating stations are installations  
containing equipment to measure the amount of gas  
entering or leaving a pipeline system and, sometimes, to  
regulate gas pressure.   

PI G 
A pig, also known as a “smart” pig, is a generic term signifying any independent, self-
contained device, tool, or vehicle that is inserted into and moves through the interior  
of a pipeline for inspecting, dimensioning, or cleaning. These tools are commonly  
referred to as “pigs” because of the occasional squealing noises that can be heard as  
they travel through the pipe.  

R E C E I V E R S  
A pipeline component used for removing an inline inspection tool, cleaning pig, or  
other device from a pressurized pipeline. The device is inserted into the pipeline via a  
launcher.  

R I G H T S - O F -WAY  (ROW)  
A right-of-way is a defined strip of land on which an operator has the rights to  
construct, operate, and/or maintain a pipeline. A ROW may be owned outright by  
the operator or an easement may be acquired for specific use of the ROW.  

T R E N C H  
A trench is a long narrow ditch dug into the ground  
and embanked with its own soil. They are used for  
concealment and protection of pipeline. Trenches are  
usually dug by a backhoe or by a specialized digging  
machine.  

VA LV E  
A valve is a mechanical device installed in a pipeline and  
used to control the flow of gas or liquid. 

See http://www.phmsa.dot.gov for additional pipeline-
related terminology definitions. 

Metering and Regulating 
Station 

Pipeline in trench 



 
 

Your project’s docket number 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
OFFICE OF ENERGY PROJECTS 

888 First Street, NE 
Washington, DC 20426 
202–502–6088 
1–866–208–3372 (toll free)
202–502–8659 (TTY) 

www.ferc.gov/industries/gas.asp 

www.ferc.gov/industries/gas.asp


BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

www.berkshireplanning.org 
SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Delegates & Alternates, Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Nathaniel W. Karns, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  May 8, 2014 
 
SUBJ:  Consideration of BRPC Budget for FY 2015 
 
Highlights for the FY 2015 proposed budget: 
 
The Finance Committee met on May1st and unanimously recommended the FY 2015 proposed budget. 
 

• The FY 15 budget is proposed at $2,699,482.  This is 7.8% above the FY 14 budget.  This 
increase is entirely in the subcontracts category, which actually is a significantly larger portion of 
the budget in the coming year, increasing by almost 62%.  This is “money in, money out” and 
does affect our bottom line.  Net the subcontracts, the budget is actually decreasing by 8.35% 
(from $1,924,656 to $1,763,782. 

• The proposed budget shows $191,767 in Unsecured New Projects.  While we are reasonably 
confident that this gap in revenues will be closed, it is an uncomfortably large number.  If it is not 
closed in the first quarter of the year with new committed projects, we may have to revisit the 
budget.  We have a number of relatively small projects which are in the works, three of those 
(about $12,000) were committed in the past week, and several other potential local projects are 
either approved in town budgets already passed or included in budgets yet to be considered.  
There are various grant decisions pending as well.   Thus some degree of caution is needed but 
alarm is not necessary. 

• The budget assumes that District Local Technical Assistance funding will end up in the State 
budget; it that does not happen we will need to fill in for that loss or reduce expenditures.   

• Direct billable salaries are projected to decrease by 1.7%.  We have two fewer planner positions 
going into the year, with no need to fill those.  Counteracting having fewer planners directly billing 
to projects are merit increases for FY 2015 (the range is 0-4.0%).  Administrative salaries are 
decreasing by 10.7%.  Overall salaries will decrease by 4.5%.  

• Overall benefits are decreasing substantially, from $533,815 to $443,635 (a 16.9% decrease).  
This is due to the loss of the two fully benefitted planner positions as well as a low health 
insurance cost increase. 

• We will fund the Retiree Health Insurance Liability Trust (GASB 45) for the fourth year.  We are 
maintaining last year’s budgeted contribution amount of $45,000.  This equals the amount we 
should be putting in annually to cover our staff who are eligible for and getting somewhat close 
(within 10 years) to retirement. 

• Non-personnel operating costs are budgeted to decrease by 5.8% from the FY 2014 budget.  
There are varying changes in the specific lines, with some substantial increases and other 
substantial decreases.  However the primary reason is not budgeting for any temporary help 
during the year (this was budgeted at $11,550 last year). 

• Direct project expenses (meetings, printing, travel & meals, and other direct program expenses, 



 
2 

as well as consultant costs) are simply a wash budget-wise as the costs and revenues are 
identical. 

• Subcontracts are much higher (a 61.2% increase from last year).  We expect to have significantly 
higher brownfields revolving loan fund activity ($250,000 more) and we have a new consultant 
under contract for brownfields assessment work ($170,000).  We have budgeted $60,000 for Rest 
of River legal consultation.    

• We have budgeted to put $15,000 into our reserve to rebuild that. 
 

 
Attachments (2) 
 FY 2014 Projected Revenues 
 FY 2014 Projected Expenditures 
 



FY 2015  BUDGET - May 1, 2014 Version Recommended

Berkshire Regional Planning Commission

PROJECTED REVENUES
FY 2014 Approved FY 2015 Recommended

Outsource GIS Planner 11,000$                    11,000$                           
Brownfield Revolving Loan Fund 210,000$                  460,000$                         

Berkshire Bike Path Council Support 700$                         700$                                
Mohawk Trail Marketing Plan 26,086$                    0$                                    

Hoosic River Revival 2,000$                      0$                                    
Mohawk Trail Hist. Preservation 77,939$                    45,799$                           

CEDS Annual Update 6,681$                      31,969$                           1

Northern Berkshire Community Coalition Walkability Assistance 1,781$                      0$                                    
Senior Housing Study 7,488$                      0$                                    

North Adams Comprehensive Plan Assistance 89,634$                    0$                                    
Adams Memorial School Reuse Plan 2,713$                      0$                                    

Transportation Planning 450,000$                  485,505$                         
Mass Receiving Planning 8,729$                      0$                                    

Berkshire Public Health Alliance Inspections 5,825$                      5,000$                             
Berkshire Public Health Alliance Nursing 10,073$                    5,000$                             

Lee Brownfields Clean-up 101,537$                  54,657$                           
Passenger Rail Station Location and Design 195,341$                  60,365$                           

Faith Based Emergency Preparedness 9,000$                      0$                                    
Berkshire Public Health Alliance - DPH 54,000$                    25,744$                           
Opioid Abuse Prevention Collaborative 99,070$                    100,000$                         

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Planning 157,571$                  154,685$                         
Brownfields Assessment 0$                             190,000$                         

Berkshire Public Health Alliance - HRIA 46,000$                    53,146$                           
Richmond - Long Range Plan Facilitation 8,500$                      8,000$                             3

Berkshire Benchmarks - 2014 25,000$                    10,000$                           
Mohawk Trail Path Phase II 60,000$                    57,081$                           

Economic Resiliency 12,000$                    11,735$                           
Medical Reserve Corps 25,000$                    25,000$                           

BCBOHA Support Services 0$                             10,000$                           
Dalton Stormwater 10,000$                    10,000$                           3

Partnership Forest Project 0$                             17,164$                           
Rest of River Coordination 0$                             60,000$                           

Brownfields Area Wide Planning 82,500$                    100,000$                         
Mass in Motion - 2014 10,000$                    0$                                    

Distressed Properties Assessment 0$                             13,715$                           
District Local Technical Assistance 159,679$                  198,199$                         2

Scenic Byways Trail Linkage Project 13,500$                    10,222$                           
Online Burn Permits 0$                             1,400$                             

Becket Green Communities Technical Assistance 3,878$                      0$                                    
Great Barrington Parcel Mapping 1,677$                      1,500$                             

Prevention Wellness Trust Fund - BPHA 0$                             1,500$                             
Transit Planning Contract MA-80-0007 - 45,717$                    37,000$                           

Lee Bikeway Design 33,000$                    49,500$                           
Homeland Security - Public Outreach Project Awareness 0$                             9,023$                             

CIC Public Health Nursing 43,394$                    37,106$                           
Berkshire Taconic Community Foundation Data Collection 5,000$                      5,000$                             

Food Safety Assessment 0$                             10,000$                           
Food Safety Training 0$                             2,500$                             

Priority Development Fund Housing Assessments 0$                             42,500$                           
Pavement Management Services 0$                             2,500$                             

Unsecured New Projects 56,759$                    191,767$                         
General:Assessement, Other 91,000$                    93,500$                           

TOTAL REVENUES 2,503,806$               2,699,482$                      

1.  Applied for - no decision as of 5/1/14
2. Assumes $100,000 new revenue.  As of 5/1/14 not approved by legislature
3. Not under contract



FY 2015 BUDGET - May 1, 2014 Version Recommended

Berkshire Regional Planning Commission

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES

FY 14 Approved FY 2015 Recommended

SALARIES
Direct Billable 785,375$            772,104$                       
Indirect Admin. 313,298$            281,003$                       

Interns (Admin) 600$                   0$                                  
Interns (Projects) 6,000$                2,275$                           

     Total Salaries 1,105,273$         1,055,382$                    

BENEFITS
Sick, Comp and Vacation Leave 121,994$            92,889$                         
Holiday and Jury Leave 64,580$              48,231$                         
Sick Leave 49,247$              37,513$                         
Retirement 6,000$                6,000$                           
Health Insurance 202,080$            177,034$                       
Retirees Health Insurance 15,215$              14,681$                         
Retiree Future Health Insurance Liability (GASB 45) 45,000$              45,000$                         
Workers Comp Insurance 973$                   1,021$                           
State Unemployment Insurance 19,823$              15,900$                         
FICA and Medicare 8,904$                5,366$                           
     Total Benefits 533,816$            443,635$                       

NON-PERSONNEL
OPERATING EXPENSES
Accounting Services 2,110$                3,650$                           
Advertising 650$                   650$                              
Audit 17,200$              17,600$                         
Computer & Equip Maintenance $ Service 15,251$              21,739$                         
Computer Software/Hardware/Equipment 17,850$              335$                              
Consulting Service 875$                   425$                              
Copying Expense 5,000$                9,925$                           
Depreciation 21,300$              24,888$                         
Dues & Subscriptions 10,181$              8,750$                           
Flex Plan Administration 724$                   995$                              
Insurance (Auto, Officers, Office) 5,307$                5,195$                           
Janitor 2,600$                2,750$                           
Legal (Administrative)  $                  150  $                           1,100 
Mapping Supplies 825$                   825$                              
Meetings (Administrative) 2,500$                2,500$                           
Payroll Services 3,554$                3,000$                           
Postage 2,650$                1,200$                           
Printing (Administrative) 400$                   400$                              
Publications 30$                     0$                                  
Rent 42,252$              43,850$                         
Staff Development 10,000$              10,000$                         
Supplies 6,500$                6,000$                           
Telephone/Internet 5,600$                6,510$                           
Temporary Help 11,550$              0$                                  
Travel & Meals (Administrative) 3,200$                2,000$                           
Water & Recycling 1,400$                1,300$                           
Web Site 660$                   460$                              
Utilities 16,600$              16,175$                         
Miscellaneous 1,000$                3,600$                           
    Subtotal Operating (Admin) 207,919$            195,822$                       



FY 2015 BUDGET - May 1, 2014 Version Recommended

Berkshire Regional Planning Commission

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES

FY 14 Approved FY 2015 Recommended

Interest Expense 2,000$                2,000$                           
Communications (Projects) 0$                       0$                                  
Equipment / Software (Projects) 0$                       750$                              
Legal (Projects) 0$                       0$                                  
Meetings (Projects) 5,100$                4,940$                           
Postage (Projects) 0$                       0$                                  
Printing (Projects) 5,554$                1,625$                           
Rent (Projects) 0$                       0$                                  
Supplies (Projects) 0$                       1,850$                           
Travel & Meals (Projects) 15,462$              11,777$                         
Other Program Expenses 31,890$              29,000$                         
Unreimbursed Expenses 2,000$                2,000$                           

Subtotal Operating (Other) 62,006$              53,942$                         

SUBCONTRACTS
Revolving Loan Fund Recipients & Consultants 200,000$            450,000$                       
Traffic Count Consultant 20,000$              2,500$                           
Regional Plan Consultants 52,441$              0$                                  
Medical Reserve Corps Consultant 25,000$              25,000$                         
Dalton Brownfield Clean-up Consultants 24,024$              0$                                  
Berkshire Public Health Alliance Inspectors 10,000$              13,000$                         
Historic Preservation Planning Services 46,100$              20,000$                         
Berkshire Public Health Nursing Program Medical Support 23,000$              24,000$                         
Lee Brownfield Clean-up Consultants 84,585$              48,000$                         
Faith Based Emergency Preparedness Planner 8,000$                0$                                  
Opioid Abuse Prevention Collaborating Partners 65,000$              65,000$                         
Brownfields Assessment 0$                       170,000$                       
Rest of River Clean-up Legal Consultation 0$                       60,000$                         
Lee - Area Wide Planning Consultants 20,000$              55,000$                         
Conservation Commission Training Consultant 0$                       0$                                  
Burn Permit Software Consultant 1,000$                1,200$                           
Emergency Preparedness Consultant (Sheltering) 0$                       0$                                  
Town Food Safety Trainers 0$                       1,500$                           
Food Safety Instructor -$                        500$                              

     Total Subcontracts 579,150$            935,700$                       

RESERVE 15,000$              15,000$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,503,164$         2,699,482$                    



 
 

O/administrative/commission/full commission meetings/FY2014/meeting/FCmtg-Approvals.doc 
 
 

 

 BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

 TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

www.berkshireplanning.org   

 

SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Delegates and Alternates, Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nathaniel W. Karns, AICP, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  April 7, 2014 
 
SUBJ: Approval of Executive Committee Actions 
 
 
In accordance with the bylaws, all actions taken by the Executive Committee on the Commission’s 
behalf must be endorsed at the next Commission meeting.  
 
The Executive Committee took the following actions at its April 3, 2014 meeting: 

 
• Approved the Executive Director on behalf of the Commission sign a Contract with 

MassDOT for Transit Planning Services for 4/1/2014-3/31/2015 
• Approved the Executive Director on behalf of the Commission to submit a Grant 

Application to the U.S. Department of Transportation for TIGER (Transportation 
Investment Generating Economic Recovery) Planning for Area Around Berkshire Medical 
Center 

• Approved the Executive Director on behalf of the Commission sign Contract(s) with 
Western Massachusetts Homeland Security Advisory Council for Outreach and 
Evacuation Service Center Planning 

• Approved the Executive Director on behalf of the Commission to submit a Grant 
Application to the Pew and Robert Wood Johnson Foundations for Community Health 
Impact Assessment 

• Approved the Executive Director on behalf of the Commission to potentially submit a Grant 
Application to U.Mass. for an Aging Assessment Grant 

• Approved the Executive Director on behalf of the Commission to submit a Grant 
Application to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency for Healthy Communities Grant 
Program 

• Approved the Executive Director on behalf of the Commission to Potentially Submit a Grant 
Application to the U.S. Department of Transportation for a TIGER Infrastructure Grant to 
Modernize Tracks on Housatonic Railroad to Support Existing Manufacturers 

• Approved the Modification to Staff Development Policy (see attached policy) 
• Approved Merit Increases for FY 2015 (see attached memo) 

 



Berkshire Regional Planning Commission – Personnel Policy 
O:\Commission\Full Commission Meetings\FY2014\2014-05-15\Staff Development - approved 4-
3-2014.docx Page 1 
 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT  
  
Purpose
 

:   

BRPC recognizes the value of staff development and encourages staff to pursue opportunities to expand 
their knowledge related to their area of responsibility.  This policy provides guidance to staff and 
supervisors for a staff development program.  The staff development program will provide funding for 
BRPC employees to cover the costs for membership in a professional organization, professional 
licenses/certifications, attendance at professional workshops/conferences (including travel, lodging and 
meals), fees for classes, books, training materials or other approved staff development activities.   

 

 
Funding: 

Each fiscal year (July 1st – June 31st

 

) an amount of $500 will be budgeted for each full time, professional 
position.  Should economic conditions preclude the full funding for professional development activities, a 
lower annual stipend will result and the revised amount will be communicated to staff.  The $500 staff 
development amount does not include the value of staff time related to participation in professional 
development activities.  The use of Staff Development funding for membership in a professional 
organization is also allowable, subject to supervisor approval. 

 
Time Policy for Staff Development: 

Each permanent, exempt or non-exempt employee shall be allowed to use up to 21 hours to 
attend/participate in staff development activities.  To reduce the impact on the overhead rate, whenever 
possible staff time should be charged against an applicable contract to which an employee is assigned, 
with concurrence to their supervisor.  In the event that a contract or project budget is unable to allow for 
the charging of staff development time, staff should charge their time to ADMIN TRN with approval of 
their supervisor.     
 
Although this policy encourages the attendance of free, web based training, an employee shall not use 
this as the basis to exceed the 21 hours allocation to attend training. Under special circumstances, the 
Executive Director may authorize a staff member to attend additional training and exceed the 21 hour 
time allocation.   
 

 
Approval Process: 

An employee shall complete a Staff Development Request and provide it to their supervisor to solicit 
approval.   Requests should be submitted well in advance of actual training to take advantage of any 
early registration discounts, advance air travel discounts as well as to insure availability of registration.  
Upon receipt, the supervisor shall make a determination on the request in accordance with this policy.  If 
approved, the form shall be forwarded to the Executive Director for final approval/signature.    
 
With respect to Staff Development, a number of training types exist.  Below, are the more common types 
and the stipulations related to each. 
 
Elective Training – Training which occurs off-site or via the internet which has been selected by the 
employee to expand their knowledge.  Training typically ranges from a few hours to a full day.  Elective 
training is subject to the $500 limit and 21 hour time allocation.  Elective training which occurs on a 



Berkshire Regional Planning Commission – Personnel Policy 
O:\Commission\Full Commission Meetings\FY2014\2014-05-15\Staff Development - approved 4-
3-2014.docx Page 2 
 

weekend or Massachusetts legal holiday shall be tracked as regular time and is not eligible for 1:1 
compensatory time permitted for required work on weekends or legal holidays. 
 
Mandatory Training – Similar to Elective Training above but attendance is required by a Supervisor or is 
agency mandated (e.g. Procurement, Employment Laws).  Time attending and costs may be excluded 
from the 21 hour allocation and the $500 budgeted allocation, respectively. 
 
Training Required by Funding Agency/Contract – There are instances where a funding agency or 
contract stipulates or encourages attendance at specific workshops, training sessions or conferences.  
Project Managers will advise employees who are assigned to projects where attendance is required as 
part of contractual obligations.   Similar to mandatory trainings, time attending and related costs may be 
excluded from the 21 hour allocation and the $500 budgeted allocation, respectively. 
 
Professional Conference/Seminars – Conferences hosted by a professional organization, often lasting 
one day or longer and consisting of numerous sessions.  The basis of a supervisor’s determination of an 
employee’s attendance at a professional conference will include the employee’s work load, work 
demands, work performance and past training attendance.  In instances where multiple employees will 
be attending the same conference, a supervisor can require that an employee attend certain sessions.  
This will allow broader coverage and allow for more information to be obtained and shared with the 
organization.  Attendance at a professional conference(s) is subject to the $500 budget allocation and 
the 21hour time allocation.  Any additional funding associated with attending the conference in excess of 
the $500 allocation will be the responsibility of the employee.  
 
 

 
Additional Opportunities:  

Professional Development for staff with five or more years of service is available. Refer to the 
Professional Development Policy. 
 
 



 
 

 

BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

www.berkshireplanning.org 
 
SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:   Delegates and Alternates, Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nathaniel W. Karns, AICP, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  May 7, 2014 
 
SUBJ:  Merit Increases for FY 2015 
 
 
At the April 3rd

 

 Executive Committee meeting approval was granted for merit increases for staff for FY 
2015.  The following is the explanatory language given the Executive Committee: 

Per our policy, each year we determine the cost of living as provided in the Bureau of Labor Statistics for the 
Urban Northeast over the preceding year and that forms the basis for our merit increases for the 
subsequent year.  We do not have a step plan or any other form of salary increase available to employees, 
except through promotion. From February 2013 through February 2014, the Urban Northeast Cost of Living 
increased by 1.03 percent.  Therefore, we are recommending the following increases, based on the overall 
performance review rating: 

Unsatisfactory:   0% 
Needs Improvement 1.0% 
Meets Expectations 2.0% 
Exceeds Expectations 3.0% 
Exceptional  4.0% 

 



 
 

 

BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

Massachusetts Relay Service:  TTY:  771 or 1-800-439-2370 

www.berkshireplanning.org 

SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nathaniel W. Karns, AICP, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  May 9, 2014 
 
SUBJ: Report of the Regional Issues Committee – Utilization of the Rural-Urban Transect and 

Form-Based Codes 
 
 
Over the past two months, the Regional Issues Committee has investigated and discussed the closely 
related topics of “the Rural-Urban Transect” and Form-Based Codes.  At their last meeting, May 5th

 

, they 
approved the following motion: 

To recommend to the Commission that on the topics of form-based coding and design standards 
it direct the staff to seek funding for: 
1) additional staff and Commission education; and  
2) technical assistance grants to Berkshire towns and cities 
 

Regional Issues Committee Chair Jamie Mullen and Executive Director Nat Karns will briefly discuss 
these concepts and the Committee’s recommendation to the Commission. 
 
 
Attachments:  Introduction to the Rural to Urban Transect 
  What are Form-Based Codes? 
  Defining a one-block parcel – by zoning, design guidelines, or form-based codes 



2. Introduction to the Rural to Urban Transect 
 

Transect-Based Planning 
“A town is saved, not more by the righteous men in it than by the woods and swamps that 
surround it.” -- Henry David Thoreau 
 
The SmartCode is a transect-based code. A transect of nature, first conceived by Alexander Von Humboldt 
at the close of the 18th century, is a geographical crosssection of a region intended to reveal a sequence of 
environments. Originally, it was used to analyze natural ecologies, showing varying characteristics 
through different zones such as shores, wetlands, plains, and uplands. It helps study the many elements 
that contribute to habitats where certain plants and animals thrive 
in symbiotic relationship to the minerals and microclimate. 
 
Human beings also thrive in different places. There are those who could never live in an urban center; 
there are those who would wither in a rural hamlet. Humans need a system that preserves and creates 
meaningful choices in their habitats.  Near the close of the 20th century, a cadre of planners recognized 
that sprawl was eradicating the pre-war American transect of the built environment. They began to 
analyze it and extract its genetic material for replication. In this way, they extended the natural transect to 
include the built environment of the human habitat, thus establishing the basis for the SmartCode. 
 
The rural-to-urban Transect is divided into six Transect Zones for application on zoning maps. These six 
habitats vary by the level and intensity of their physical and social character, providing immersive 
contexts from rural to urban. Smart-Code elements are coordinated by these T-zones at all scales of 
planning, from the region through the community scale down to the individual lot and building. 
 
Introduction 
 
One of the principles of Transect-based planning is that certain forms and elements belong in certain 
environments. For example, an apartment building belongs in a more urban setting, a ranch house in a 
more rural setting. Some types of thoroughfares are urban in character, and some are rural. A deep 
suburban setback destroys the spatial enclosure of an urban street; it is out of context. These distinctions 
and rules don’t limit choices; they expand them. This is the antidote for the 
one-size-fits-all development of today. 
 
The Transect is evident in two ways. Zones and communities (1) exist as characteristic places on the 
Transect and (2) they evolve along the Transect over time. As places, the six Transect Zones display 
identifiable characteristics, based on normative American urban patterns. They also increase in 
complexity, density and intensity over a period of years, until a “climax condition” is reached. This is a 
growth process analogous to succession in natural environments. The best urbanism requires the 
sequential influence of many participants. A code allows buildings to be designed and built by many 
hands over years, or even generations.  The single designer or committee leads to a lack of robustness, 
similar to vulnerable monocultures in nature. A parametric and successional code like the SmartCode 
allows experience to feed back and become integrated -- the fourth dimension of time. Once adopted, it 
stays in place, allowing urbanism to evolve and mature without losing its necessary foundation of order.  
It also ensures that a community will not have to scrutinize all proposed projects, because the intentions 
of the citizens will have already been determined in the process that leads to the code. The SmartCode is a 
comprehensive framework for that process. 
 





R-4
0

R-4
0

How form-based codes
define a one-block parcel

How zoning defines a 
one-block parcel
Density, use, FAR (floor-area ratio), 
setbacks, parking requirements, 
and maximum building height(s) 
specified.

Density, use, FAR (floor-area 
ratio), setbacks, parking 
requirements, maximum building 
height(s), frequency of openings, 
and surface articulation specified.

Street and building types (or mix of 
types),  build-to lines, number of 
floors, and percentage of built site 
frontage specified.

How design guidelines 
define a one-block parcel

©2006 Peter Katz and Steve Price—Urban Advantage



 
 

 

BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201 

TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521 · FAX (413) 442-1523 

Massachusetts Relay Service:  TTY:  771 or 1-800-439-2370 

www.berkshireplanning.org 

SHEILA IRVIN, Chair    NATHANIEL W. KARNS, A.I.C.P. 
KYLE HANLON, Vice-Chair    Executive Director 
MARILYN WILEY, Clerk 
CHARLES P. OGDEN, Treasurer 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nathaniel W. Karns, AICP, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  May 9, 2014 
 
SUBJ: Executive Director’s Report 
 
 
Various items warrant mention: 
 
A. MassDOT Project Selection Advisory Council Public Hearing – Tuesday, May 20, 2014, BRPC 
 

The MassDOT Project Selection Advisory Council will hold a public hearing on its work to-date at 
BRPC, starting at 5:30 on Tuesday, May 20th.  Mt. Washington Select Board member and BRPC 
Alternate Jim Lovejoy is the representative of the Massachusetts Municipal Association on the 
Council.  The Council was created by the transportation finance legislation which was passed last 
year.  Chapter 46 of the 2013 Transportation Revenue Law calls on the Project Select Advisory 
Council to develop uniform project selection criteria to be used in the development of a 
comprehensive state transportation program.  The agenda for the meeting is attached.  For 
further information contact Sheri Warrington at MassDOT (sheri.warrington@state.ma.us or 857-
368-8837. 

 
B. Release of Proposed Remedy for Rest of River Clean-Up by EPA – Tuesday, June 17, 2014, 

Lenox Middle/High School 
 

EPA announced this week that it will be releasing its proposed remedy for remediation of the PCB 
contamination in the Housatonic River from Pittsfield to Long Island Sound by mid-June.  They 
will hold a public meeting at Lenox Middle/High School on Tuesday, June 17th with the time to be 
determined.  This will precede opening the formal public comment period on the Remedy.  For 
further information, contact BRPC Senior Planner Lauren Gaherty at 442-1521, ext. 35, or 
LGaherty@berkshireplanning.org or Executive Director Nat Karns at ext. 26 or 
NKarns@berkshireplanning.org. 
 

C. Status of 2015 District Local Technical Assistance & Community Innovation Challenge Grant 
Funding in Budget 

 
The House budget which was approved last week included level funding ($2.8 million) for the 
District Local Technical Assistance program.  These funds are allocated by formula to the 13 
regional planning agencies and are used to provide BRPC staff support for 10-15 local planning 

mailto:sheri.warrington@state.ma.us�
mailto:LGaherty@berkshireplanning.org�
mailto:NKarns@berkshireplanning.org�


 
 

 

and locally requested regionalization efforts each year.  Having this program in the state budget is 
critical in order for BRPC to maintain the level of service we are able to provide our communities. 
 
The Community Innovation Challenge Grant program did not fare well in the House budget.  The 
Governor requested $3.75 million for this program which is used to actually implement 
regionalization projects.  The House did not include any funding for it.  This program has been 
used to expand the regional public health nursing program established by BRPC’s Berkshire 
Public Health Alliance and was used to create the on-line building permit program. 
 
The Senate will take the budget up this month so now is the time to contact Senator Downing to 
indicate how important these programs are to your community.  For further information, contact 
Executive Director Nat Karns at nkarns@berkshireplanning.org or 442-1521, ext. 26. 
 

D. H.1859 – “An Act promoting the planning and development of sustainable communities” (formerly 
the Comprehensive Land Use Reform Act) 

 
After years of effort, a bill to reform Massachusetts’ antiquated land use legislation has been 
reported favorably out of the Joint Committee on Municipalities and Regional Government (Rep. 
Cariddi is House Vice-Chair).  Staff has reviewed the modified bill and checked the results 
against the Commission’s earlier formal comments.  A summary of that review is attached.  The 
BRPC Regional Issues Committee will review the bill at its next meeting, scheduled for Monday, 
June 2nd at 4:30 at BRPC.  Legislatively, it still has to be considered by the Ways and Means 
Committees before it possibly goes to the full chambers for consideration.  For further 
information, contact Executive Director Nat Karns (nkarns@berkshireplanning.org or 442-1521, 
ext. 26) or Senior Planner Brian Domina at bdomina@berkshireplanning.org or ext. 14. 
 

E. 5th Thursday Dinner for Planning & Zoning Boards – Planning for the Impacts of Climate Change 
at the Local Level – May 29th

 
, Cork & Hearth, Lee 

The flyer and registration form for the next 5th

 
 Thursday Dinner is attached. 

 
Attachments: MassDOT Project Selection Advisory Council Public Hearing Agenda 
 Summary of BRPC Staff Analysis of H.1859 
 5th

 
 Thursday Dinner Announcement & Registration Form 

 
 
 
Attachments:   

mailto:nkarns@berkshireplanning.org�
mailto:nkarns@berkshireplanning.org�
mailto:bdomina@berkshireplanning.org�


Ten Park Plaza, Suite 4160, Boston, MA 02116 

Tel: 857-368-4636, TDD: 857-368-0655 

www.mass.gov/massdot 
Leading the Nation in Transportation Excellence 

 

 

Project Selection Advisory Council 
 Public Hearing Agenda 

 
 

Tuesday, May 20, 2014  
5:30 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
1 Fenn Street, Suite 201 

Pittsfield, MA  
 

 
1. Introductions 

 
2. Opening Remarks from the Chairman 

 
3. Overview of the Council 
 
4. Presentation of Preliminary Observations 

 

5. Public Comment 
 
6. Other Items 
 

 

This meeting is accessible to people with disabilities and those with limited English proficiency. Accessibility 
accommodations and language services will be provided free of charge, upon request, as available. Such services 
include documents in alternate formats, translated documents, assistive listening devices, and interpreters (including 
American Sign Language). For more information or to request reasonable accommodation and/or language services 
please contact Sheri Warrington at 857-368-8837 or sheri.warrington@state.ma.us . 

If this information is needed in another language, please contact the MassDOT Title VI Specialist at 857-368-8580. 

Caso esta informação seja necessária em outro idioma, favor contar o Especialista em Título VI do MassDOT pelo 
telefone 857-368-8580. 

Si necesita esta información en otro idioma, por favor contacte al especialista de MassDOT del Título VI al 857-368-
8580. 

如果需要使用其它语言了解信息，请联系马萨诸塞州交通部（MassDOT）《民权法案》第六章专员，电话857-368-
8580。 

如果需要使用其它語言了解信息，請聯繫馬薩諸塞州交通部（MassDOT）《民權法案》第六章專員，電話857-368-
8580。 

mailto:sheri.warrington@state.ma.us


 
 

 

Если Вам необходима данная информация на любом другом языке, пожалуйста, свяжитесь со cпециалистом 
по Титулу VI Департамента Транспорта штата Массачусетс (MassDOT) по тел: 857-368-8580. 

Si yon moun vle genyen enfòmasyon sa yo nan yon lòt lang, tanpri kontakte Espesyalis MassDOT Title VI la nan 
nimewo 857-368-8580. 

Nếu quý vị cần thông tin này bằng tiếng khác, vui lòng liên hệ Chuyên viên Luật VI của MassDOT theo số điện thoại 
857-368-8580. 

Si vous avez besoin d'obtenir une copie de la présente dans une autre langue, veuillez contacter le spécialiste du 
Titre VI de MassDOT en composant le 857-368-8580. 

Se ha bisogno di ricevere queste informazioni in un’altra lingua si prega di contattare lo Specialista MassDOT del 
Titolo VI al numero 857-368-8580. 

           -                                                  6     MassDot                 857-368-8580 

 فإن كنت بحاجة إلى هذه المعلومات بلغة أخرى، يُرجى الاتصال بأخصائي الفقرة السادسة على الهات

 5858-865-588  

 

 



BRPC Staff Summary Comments on H. 1859 Comm.
5/5/2014 bill BRPC

released conclus
Section # Comments

1 support expanding definition of "Permit Granting Authority" amended Yes adds select bds & city councils
2 support new definitions amended Yes minor

3

support inclusion of language acknowledging the Home Rule 
Authority of municipalities and explicitly acknowledging certain land 
use techniques amended Yes minor

4
support the ability to reduce the supermajority vote requirement 
for zoning adoption/amendments no Yes

5
support the delay in the effective date of a change in the vote 
requirement for zoning adoption/amendments. amended

less than supermajority - if Plng Bd finds is 
not inconsistent with master plan; if not 
subject to landowner protest

6 support changes to the vested rights language no Yes
7 same as above no Yes

8

support change in vested rights to two years for a building permit 
and three years for a special permit after submittal and notice of 
submission prior to publication of notice for a public hearing amended Yes editing only

New 9
Exempts non-conforming single & 2 family zoned lots from any 
abandonment new No

Might be ok if were lots used for single & 2 
family; 

New 10
Clarifies that protection of lots from changes in area or dimensional 
requirements applies whether is vacant or built upon new Yes

Probably is how it is interpreted anyway; 
provides more clarity

11 (old 9) support the five year dimensional vested rights protection no Yes

12 (old 10)
support 8 year vested rights for definitive subdivision plans and 4 
year vested rights for minor subdivision plans. amended Yes minor

13 (old 11 support elimination of 3 year vested rights protection for ANR lots no Yes



14 (old 12)
support striking "land shown on" plans vesting (which protects from 
any zoning change) to vest only the plan as submitted and approved no Yes

15 (old 13) support change from "Special Permits" to "Special Provisions" no Yes

16 (old 14)
support elimination of the limiting language as being out of date 
given the 1966 Home Rule Amendment no Yes

Old 15

does not support the text change, given the previously stated Home 
Rule Amendment, which would require that multi-family use in non-
residentially zoned areas shall require certain factors must be met.  
Given home rule authority, this language seems unnecessary and, in 
fact, contrary to home rule provisions amended Yes

Eliminated this language, so agreed with 
BRPC position

17 (old 16)

does not support this change. The supermajority for special permits 
should be retained, with provision for a local option to allow special 
permits by simple majority, with such change requiring a 
supermajority (similar to provision of Sections 4 and 5 above) amended Yes Committee agreed with BRPC position

18 (old 17)

support minimum 3 year duration for a special permit. A public 
hearing should be held prior to the grant of an extension of a special 
permit. amended Yes

Basically, Committee agreed with BRPC 
position.  Allows it to not be with pub hear if 
local bylaw says doesn't

19 (old 18)

support amendment requiring that hazardous waste facility 
exemption be limited to hazardous waste facilities which are 
principal (not accessory) uses no Yes

20 (old 19) same as above no Yes

21 (old 20)
support the Site Plan Review section including the two year grace 
period to bring existing bylaws with site plan review into conformity amended Yes

Clarifying or relatively minor changes; seem 
to make sense

22 (old 21)

support the Impact Fee section, requesting that it be clarified as to 
who pays for the required study and that the cost of the study 
should be part of the development impact fee amended Yes

Several changes made by committee which 
improve this section.  2nd para includes 
language addressing BRPC concern

23 (old 22) support Inclusionary Zoning section amended Yes Clarifying language; seems appropriate



24 (old 23)
support the Voluntary Land Use Dispute Avoidance section; it is non-
binding and optional for both parties amended Yes adds "mediator or" facilitator

25 (old 24)

supports the change of the standard for the issuance of a variance.  
The Committee felt the new language is a big improvement over the 
existing language.  The Committee agreed with dropping financial 
hardship as an explicit determination, although it can still be 
considered due to the "feasible to pursue language" amended Yes Clarifying language; seems appropriate

26 (old 25)
support adding the local board of health as a "party of interest" for 
zoning matters no Yes

27 (old 26)

does not support this change. The use of a consolidated permitting 
process should be at local option or removed from the legislation. 
Use of the consolidated permit process should not be at the 
discretion of the applicant. The length of time to hold a public 
hearing should remain at 65 days and not reduced to 45 days. The 
power of a board to continue a public hearing should be retained. amended No

Agreed with our 65 day suggestion.  Did not 
agree with our position that use of 
consolidated permitting should be at local 
option - remains as a developers tool.  Other 
changes seem ok.

does not support this change. The Committee discussed the 
Planning Ahead for Growth Act at some length.  It essentially makes 
it a lot easier to build housing but is at local option.  There are 
added incentives for communities to use this provision, such as they 
can establish rate of development measures, adopt natural resource 
protection zoning, and will receive priorities for some State 
investment, including the current MassWorks programs, State 
transportation investment, and CDBG.  There is no requirement for 
master plans. amended No

  



The Commission appreciates that this section is at local option; 
however, it believes that many of the county’s communities (and 
most rural communities) will not have the resources to adopt and 
implement these provisions and thus will be negatively impacted. 
One important concern is that “certified” communities will have a 
preference over “non-certified” communities when competing for 
state discretionary funding. A second concern is that natural 
resources protection zoning is most applicable and useful in more 
rural settings and yet rural communities have the least resources 
and inclination to work to become certified communities.  In fact, 
given their very rural nature, promoting more housing development 
within rural certified communities is contrary to “smart growth” 
principles.  This section should be removed from the legislation. 
The Commission appreciates the need to incentivize communities 
to act, but the incentives provided should not negatively impact 
other communities who have not received “certified” status. amended No

Committee amendments are technical in 
nature and do not address our substantive 
concern with this section.

qualified support (if issues discussed herein are addressed). In 
reviewing the proposed bill, the Committee believes the new 
language is overly detailed and too directive, with the language on 
sections in all cases expanding from a simple statement to an entire, 
often lengthy, paragraph that was essentially current state 
priorities.  The overly prescriptive nature of the extensive language 
would actually be a disincentive for communities to develop master 
plans, especially since they are no longer mandated. no No

The committee made no changes in 
response to our concerns.

The Committee agreed with the ten-year grandfathering of master 
plans already adopted.

28 (old 27)

  



There is an overlap between 3) Natural Resources and Energy 
Management and 8) Open Space Protection and Recreation.  It was 
felt that 3) would be more appropriately entitled "Natural Resources 
and Climate Change" rather than "Energy Management" and that 
more consideration of Climate Change should be given.

The requirement for legislative body approval of a master plan will 
lead to a stripped down and generalized plan since that would be all 
that could get approved by city councils or town meetings.  What is 
the problem with the existing adoption process? 
The Committee felt that communities must have flexibility to reduce 
or modify the requirements and the prescriptive approach in order 
to meet their circumstances and to be able to utilize pieces as they 
see fit.

The Committee likes the three additional categories to be 
considered in master plans:  Water Management, Public Health, and 
Climate Change [Energy Management in bill]; but not in the overly 
prescriptive manner presented in the bill.
In (9) Infrastructure and Capital Facilities, "Scheduled" should be 
"planned or needed" expansion.  Also, the discussion of circulation 
system components is redundant with what should be included in 
(10) Transportation.
Where is the funding for the assessment against a regional plan or, 
for that matter, funding for regional plans?

30 (old 29) supports the new definition of Subdivision no Yes
31 (old 30) supports the Minor Subdivision language no Yes

32 (old 31)
supports the change eliminating ability to alter lot layout in 
approved subdivisions through the ANR process no Yes

33 (old 32) supports the new language for minor subdivisions amended Yes Minor wording changes by Committee

34 (old 33)
supports the presumption that roadway widths no greater than 24 
feet are not excessive no Yes

29 (old 28)



35 (old 34)
generally supports allowing the dedication of open space as part of 
developments, but the Committee felt that the potential uses of the 
open space should include environmentally sensitive or natural 
resource protection areas. amended Yes agreed with our suggestion

36 (old 35) supports elimination of the ANR language no Yes
37 (old 36) supports, with clarification included in Section 34 no Yes
38 (old 37) supports elimination of the ANR language no Yes
39 (old 38) supports elimination of the ANR language no Yes

40 (old 39)
supports language creating a process for recording perimeter plans 
and lot line change amended Yes Minor wording changes by Committee

41 (old 40)
supports change of judicial review from de novo review to ceriorari 
review no Yes

42-43 (old 41-
42)

does not support. The Committee feels that much clearer language 
is needed in these sections.  It is not clear what is broken that needs 
fixing.  There is a lack of clarity in the language and it appears that it 
would impose serious questions that we really don't understand.  
The Committee is comfortable with the rights of appeal as they 
currently stand no No

44 (old 43)
supports the proposed changes, plus the Committee would like to 
see language added that makes it clear that if a proposed project or 
action is not consistent with the approved master plan that reason 
alone may be sufficient to deny the project or action amended ?

Did respect our comment, but given that 
this ties back into the new Master Plan 
requirements, the "not inconsistent" only 
pertains if a community has a certified 
master plan.  It is not useful if, as we expect, 
few of our communities will bother to meet 
the extensive new requirements.



Overall

There is no new funding to assist 
communities in updating their zoning, as is 
stipulated in multiple sections or in 
preparing master plans which meet the 
much more extensive requirements nor is 
there any funding provided to provide the 
resources to regional planning agencies for 
their various mandated actions



Planning for the Impacts of Climate 
Change at the Local Level  

A Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 5th Thursday Event  
 

May 29, 2014 | Cork & Hearth Restaurant 

   

 

The changing of the earth’s climate will impact communities both large and small in Berkshire 
County. Many communities have taken steps to implement energy conservation measures 
and otherwise reduce their emission of greenhouse gases. Yet, very few communities have 
planned for or developed strategies to  deal with the anticipated impacts of climate change.  

 

Please join us on May 29, 2014 at the Cork & Hearth Restaurant in Lee, MA, as we welcome 
Mr. Ezra Small, Sustainability Manager at the University of Massachusetts. Mr. Small will     

discuss the current and anticipated impacts of climate change to our region and present local 
adaptation strategies that municipalities can implement to lessen both the physical and       

financial impacts of climate change.    

For additional details, cost information and to RSVP please see the attached return sheet 

Questions? Contact:  

Judy Wagner (413) 442‐1521 ext. 10 | Jwagner@berkshireplanning.org  

   



5th Thursday Dinner – May 29, 2014 
“Climate Change” 

 
Please remit payment to BRPC, 1 Fenn Street, Suite 201, Pittsfield, MA 01201 prior to the event 

 
Municipality:  _______________________________________________________ 
 
# of Attendees:  ____________  Amount Enclosed:  ____________ 
 
Please provide the following information for each attendee:  
 
Name(s):  
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address(es): 
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________ 

Municipal Title(s)/Board(s): 
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________ 
 
********************************************************************************************* 
 

Location & Menu 
 

Cork & Hearth Restaurant | Route 20 | Lee, MA 01238 
 

Please join us for a buffet dinner consisting of the following:  
 

Fresh Baked Rolls & Fresh Salad 
Chicken Marsala 

Fresh Baked Scrod 
Vegetarian Pasta 

Seasonal Vegetable 
Oven Roasted Potatoes 

Coffee/Tea & Dessert 
 

* Please note on this form if you have special dietary restrictions and we will do our best to accommodate your needs 
 

*********************************************************************************************** 
 
Cost Information 
 
$33.00 for Municipal Officials, Municipal Board Members & Guests 
 
 
Reservations must
Cancellations received after May 22nd are non-refundable. 

 be received by: May 22, 2014 - Late reservations will not be accepted 

 
 
Please RSPV to Linda Ludwig: Lludwig@berkshireplanning.org.  
Questions to Brian Domina: bdomina@berkshireplanning.org or (413) 442-1521 ext.14  

mailto:Lludwig@berkshireplanning.org�
mailto:bdomina@berkshireplanning.org�

	Agenda 2014-05-15
	1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201
	UMEETING NOTICE
	A meeting of the Berkshire Regional Planning Commission
	Thursday, May 15, 2014 at 7:00 p.m.

	UAGENDA
	IV. Consideration of Draft Transportation Improvement Program for FY 2015-2018
	(7:15-7:40)
	V. Consideration of Draft Transportation Unified Planning Work Program for FY 2015
	(7:40-7:50)
	VI. Kinder-Morgan Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Projects   (7:50-8:20)

	VII. Report of the Regional Issues Committee – Utilization of the Rural-Urban Transect and Form-Based Codes        (8:20-8:30)
	VIII. Consideration of BRPC Budget for FY 2015     (8:30-8:40)
	IX. Report of the Nominating Committee – Slate of Officer Candidates for FY 2015
	(8:40-8:45)
	X. Approval of Executive Committee Actions between March 20 and May 15, 2014
	(8:45-8:50)


	Draft Full Commission Minutes 2014-03-20
	BERKSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
	1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201
	TELEPHONE (413) 442-1521   FAX (413) 442-1523
	Massachusetts Relay Service:  TTY:  771 or 1-800-439-2370
	Thursday, March 20, 2014
	At the Berkshire Regional Planning Commission Office
	I.       Call to Order
	II. Public Comments – John Pariseau, County resident and Pittsfield business owner, expressed his frustration ever the lack of vocational educational opportunities in Berkshire County. The losers are the local businesses and students. There are about ...
	Nat Karns stated there are strategies and policies in the proposed Sustainable Berkshire Plan related to this topic.
	III. Delegate & Alternate Issues – none
	IV.  Briefing on District Local Technical Assistance Projects for 2015
	Tom Matuszko presented the projects BRPCs staff will work on which fall under three categories:
	 Planning Ahead for Housing
	 Planning Ahead for Growth
	 Supporting Regional Efforts/Services
	There are six projects BRPC received requests for that were not funded under the DLTA funds this year. Most of those projects that did not make the cut have other funding opportunities.
	All were encouraged to write their State Representative to continue to support this important program and include DLTA money in the Budget Bill.
	V.  Presentation of Great Barrington Master Plan
	VI. Sustainable Berkshires – Consideration of Plan Adoption

	Nat gave an overview of Berkshire County facts and the process:
	 The old plan was adopted in 2001. At that time we thought our decline in population was turning around.
	 The aspects of the new plan show our population is continuing on a declining trend until 2030 then will accelerate after 2030 as the baby boom group will age out of the population.
	  How sustainable is Berkshire County? Communities are not fiscally sustainable.
	 The ideal school enrollment for a high school is 1200 to 1800. Currently our schools do not have the enrollment to support vocational programs or a broad range of electives.
	 Berkshire County wages are below the National Average.
	 Berkshire County Education Attainment is below the National Average; higher rates of graduates from high school than national average but lower college and post college graduates than the National Average.
	 While working on the Sustainable Plan there were a lot of Public Outreach, Steering Committees, Public Workshops, organizations and business involved.
	 The Sustainable Berkshires Regional Plan is a policy document and does not regulatory teeth to it.
	 In the land use element, we need to preserve the existing land use pattern.   We need reinvestment in our village centers and our downtowns.
	 Rural land that has been developed in its low density pattern and it has a natural resource value. We are not advocating that all those lands be protected and preserved.
	 It is important to preserve the natural attributes that make a neighborhood or the region attractive.  An example is neighborhoods around a lake how important it is to preserve the lake and the water in order for those neighborhoods to be attractive..
	 There are many strategies and policies in the plan. There are still others that may not be in the plan.
	 BRPC has received feedback on sections and asked for clarification on some points.
	Rene Wood asked Nat what he thought was the best plan of action for tonight.  Nat asked the commission to adopt Sustainable Berkshires, to be modified by staff to incorporate the substantive changes agreed to by the Commission and also to incorporate ...
	Nat explained the suggested new strategies to be added or modified language from the BRPC Staff in the “Responses to Comments Received as of March 14, 2014” document.
	Nat explained at the Public Hearing there was a concern raised over the Housatonic Railroad extension.  Everyone can decide to keep the language that mentions the Housatonic Railroad extension in the plan as is, modify it, or drop it. If the commissi...
	Nat explained additional input on the Housing & Neighborhoods and Infrastructure and Services sections in the potential additional policies or goals to consider March 20, 2014 document handed out tonight.
	Sheila asked if anyone wanted to discuss any aspects of the plan.
	Kate Fletcher expressed her concerns on Bullet 6 Public Hearing Questions and Answers (March 6, 2014) document that was in the packet regarding the concern about the Housatonic Railroad extension.
	Kate was unsure why we have this language in the plan and what it enables. Kate also asked about the statement “Overcome the region’s lack of access to Interstate highway system by planning an expedited access route from I-90 etc..” (see below)
	Nat replied to the first question. Stockbridge’s concern is over the Housatonic Railroad discussion at this point.  In the plan it only references the Housatonic rail in this statement:
	Nat replied that BRPC was in no way endorsing a specific proposal regarding the railroad or the ridership projected numbers or that the economic impact analysis that was done is totally accurate. The statement is only a broad conceptual statement tha...
	Kate would like to see a line stating access from Boston to Pittsfield or Pittsfield to the Albany area.  Nat replied those line serve a different purpose or different market and the plan does not exclude other lines.
	Sheila explained the mention of the Housatonic Rail is not an endorsement but an acknowledgement of a proposal that is happening now.
	Rene Wood suggested inserting the word “evaluate” in the language.
	Nat explained the language in the plan is not new; it is language that was adopted by the MPO.
	VII. Approval of Executive Committee Actions at the March 6, 2014 Meeting

	Rene Wood moved to approve; seconded by Chris Rembold.  Unanimously approved with one abstention.
	VIII.  Executive Director’s Report
	XI. Adjournment

	TIP Memo 2014-05-08
	1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201

	March 10 FFY 2015-2018 TIP Evaluation
	FFY 2015-2018 Projects & Targets
	FFY 2018 Eligible Projects
	FFY 2015-2018 TIP Development
	FFY 2018 Scenarios
	FFY 2018 Project Description Sheet
	UPWP Memo 2014-05-09
	1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201

	Planning Studies 2015 UPWP
	FERC-Gas Pipeline Public Info Bulletin
	Budget Memo 2014-05-08
	FY 2015 BRPC Budget Revenue - recommended 5.01.14
	Revenue-FY15

	FY 2015 BRPC Budget Expense - recommended 5.01.14
	Expense-FY15

	FCMtg-Approvals 2014-04-03
	Staff Development - approved 4-3-2014
	Merit Increase 2014-05-07
	1 FENN STREET, SUITE 201, PITTSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 01201

	RIC Memo - 2014-05-09
	2 -  Introduction to the Rural to Urban Transect
	FBCI-What Are Form-Based Codes
	Image-Comparing-Zoning-Guidelines-and-FBC
	Exec Dir Memo - 2014-05-09
	Project Selection Advisory Council Public Hearing #1 Agenda
	BRPC CLURPA Review 2014-05-05
	Sheet1

	Flyer-5th Thursday
	Planning for the Impacts of Climate Change at the Local Level 

	Return Sheet.May 5th TH


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




